## **REQUEST TO CONTRACT**

☐ AGRICULTURE AND LANDS
☐ ENVIRONMENT

				PARTA – PLA	NNING (See Instruct	ions)				
DIVISION/BRANCH EPD ROB			LOCATION/ REGION:	Skeena Sm	Skeena Smithers					
PR	PROJECT TITLE: Kitimat Airshed Impact Assessment Study Water and Soils Sampling Project									
	NTRA	ACT ER/MONITOF	R NAME:	lan Sharpe		PHONE:	250-847	7-725	51	
			S/PURPOSE	wishes to engage	ultiple proposed LNG and contracted resources to order to give confidential	conduct a c	umulative effe			ed
RE		N EXISTING RCES NOT FI			s.12			s.1	2	
PR		BE THE IMPA AM DELIVER 'ED								
<b>S</b>			テース・モイズマイエー 二十二二		LIANCE CHECKLIST			Υ	įΝ.	⊹n/a ∤
1.	If a C	Corporate Supp PM 6.3.2.c.2)	oly Arrangement	(CSA) is available, are	e the goods or services being p	ourchased thro	ough the CSA?		x	
2.			ts over \$100,000 contract file. (CPF		ustification (CBJ) been prepare	ed? If yes, atta	ach the CBJ			x
3.	mont	hs from previous	us expiry date), i	he new contract must	has been used for similar wor be approved by an expense a onse authority approved the co	uthority with a	uthority for the			x
4.	Can	you confirm thi	s contract does i	not constitute an <u>empl</u>	oyer/employee relationship? (	CPPM 6.3.1.7	).	x		
				BEST PRACTICE	S CHECKLIST					
1.	Has a	a <u>Risk Assess</u> n	nent been prepa	red to determine the p	ossible need for additional ins	urance require	ements?			х
			PROCUREN	IENT PROCESS, S	EE FOOTNOTES FOR COD	E DESCRIP	rion .			
	100	OPEN COMPE	TITIVE PROCESS	Y 204 DI	RECT AWARD ONFIDENTIALITY	☐ 400	SELECTED VEN	NDOR	FRON	
	200	DIRECT AWAR		□ 205 DI	RECT AWARD - NOTICE OF	☐ 401	COMPETITION A VENDORS ON A QUALIFICATION	AMON A PRE	- 1G	
	201	DIRECT AWAR	RD - SOLE SOUR		RECT AWARD - NO USTIFICATION	500	PURCHASE FROM CORPORATE S ARRANGEMEN	UPPL		
	202		RD - EMERGENC		RECT AWARD - UNDER \$25,000	600	OTHER PURCH			ss
	203	ORDER ORDER	RD – SECURITY,		RECT INVITATION TO LECTED VENDORS	601	AGREEMENTS	אוטאו	IG	
If Direct Award, Contractor's legal name: Limnotek Research & Development Inc Address: 4035 W 14th Ave, Vancouver, BC V6R 2X3 Phone:(604) 222-3546										
Rationale for Direct Award to this contractor. The solicitation process would violate the confidentiality of Cabinet, as it would publish details related to decision making regarding LNG development, prior to Cabinet being ready to communicate with the public on this subject.										
If a Direct Award was selected under 201, 206 or 207 above, has your program used these services in the										
lf ye			and data of the	provious contract o	nd the contract value:					
•	riea	ise state the e	end date of the	hi exions configor a	nd the contract value:		MOE-201	3-003	11	

Please state if the opportunity was competitively bid or direct awarded:					
Will a Direct Award purchase obligate government to this vendor for future purchases or services? (e.g. licensing, maintenance, etc.)	Υ	N	x	N/A	
Provide details::					

# PART A CONTINUED PLANNING (See Instructions)

CONTRACT DETAILS												
ANTIGIPATED TERM OF AGREEMENT: FROM DATE: September 19, 2013 TO DATE: December 31, 2013												
RECOVER	RECOVERABLE? YES NO X											
1	ED FROM (FULL NAM	1E):							-			
1	F RECOVERY: \$											
PERCENTAGE: %  ESTIMATED  VALUE OF \$130,000  CONTRACT:				OVER APPR HAS A	NOTE: LEGAL REVIEW IS REQUIRED FOR <u>SERVICE</u> CONTRACTS OVER \$250,000 OR WHEN MODIFICATIONS ARE MADE TO THE APPROVED TEMPLATES. HAS A LEGAL REVIEW BEEN OBTAINED?  N/A ×							
CLIENT	RESPONSIBILITY	SERVICE	LINE	STOB			PRO	JECT	AMO	JNT	-	
048	2940A	30592		6001			2900	000	\$160.	000		
		*			·							
L												
	CONT	RACT CA	recory 45	EE FO	กรมก	TES FOR CODE (	regni	PTION.	ar e o			
☐ GMA			☐ PRA					BSA			Signal.	
☐ HR/LF	₹		□ РМ				×	OP				
<u> </u>			☐ con	A.				отн				
	ALT/TIEM	A EXCLUS	SIONEIST	SEE	тоот	OTES FOR COD	PDES	CRIPTION			(Extrac	
☐ 100	PURCHASE SUBJEC				500	EXCLUDED - SE	Carry State					
x 200	PURCHASE BELOW THRESHOLD	APPLICA	BLE AIT	(	600	EXCLUDED - PR			JTQ		. [	_
	PURCHASE OF AN E		)		700	COMPATIBILITY/EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS  COMPATIBILITY/EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS						
☐ <b>4</b> 00	EXCLUDED - EMER	GENCY		3	800	EXCLUDED REDEVELOPMENT	GIONA	L /ECONO	MIC		Ε	]
NOTE: If your Procurement Process changes to reduce the number of vendors given the opportunity to bid from that indicated in 'Procurement Process' section above, then the EA must approve the change in Part B before awarding the contract. EA approval can be by email as long as this document is included as an attachment to the email from the EA.  Provide details of Procurement Process change:												
EXPENSE AUTHORITY ACPROVALE mail approval acceptable   LEXECUTIVE ACPROVAC ((f/required) email approval acceptable												
Sept 24/3 /Min Sept 25/13												
PRINT NAME	Maria Strade 10 as											

## PART B - AWARD

## (Complete for new contracts only- See Instructions)

CONTRACTOR (FULL LEGAL NAME): : Limnotek Research & Development Inc									
CONTRACTOR'S 'DOING BUSINESS AS' NAME (IF APPLICABLE):									
í	RESS: 4035 W 14th Ave, Vanco		<u> </u>	<u> </u>				.,,,	
				CONTRACT NUM	BER:	GS14EPD-088			
PHO	NE NUMBER: :(604) 222-3546								
EMAI	L ADDRESS: cperrin@limnote	k.com			WC	B NUMBER: 325447			
		CONFIRMA	TION OF CONTRA	CT DETAILS FRO	M PA	RTA	·	٧	
Has th	ere been any changes to the value	or <u>term</u> of the co	intract from the 'Cont	ract Details' section in	n Part A	\? Y		N	x
If yes,	hen the Qualified Receiver/Contract Expense Authority and Executive ap xtending into an additional fiscal yea	proval (if require			the doll	ar value and an end			
TERI	M OF AGREEMENT:	From Date: S	eptember 23, 201	3	To D	ate: December 31, 2013			
Total	Value: \$160,000	·				to the term of the			
	(10	*	CY COMPLIANCE contracts click n/a v	CHECKLIST vhere appropriate)			Y	N	N/A
1.	For service contracts with an aggre (CPPM 6,3,2,c,4)	gate value over	\$75,000, inclusive of	all potential extension	ns, did	you advertise on <u>BC Bid</u> ?		х	
2.	For <u>service</u> contracts between \$25, and profile of the business opportul <u>6.3.2.c.5</u> ) Documentation of the pro	nity? Opportuniti	es must be posted or	BC Bid or at least the	approj	priate to the value, complexity otes must be obtained. (CPPM			х
3.	For all contracts under \$25,000, dic	you compete to	the extent reasonab	le and cost-effective?	Docur	nentation is required in the file.			х
4.	If a pre-qualification list of contracto (for contracts over \$75,000, the opp	ors was used, wa portunity must go	es the contract award to all vendors on the	ed through a competite list) ? (CPPM 6.3.2.c	tive pro	ocess as described in the list			Х
5.	If the General Services Agreement Management approval? Documen	or approved con tation of appro	struction template wa val must be kept in	as not used, did you o the contract file. ( <u>CP</u>	btain L PM 6.	egal Services and <u>Risk</u> 3.3.e.5)			Х
6.	Does Schedule A clearly identify specific and measurable contract deliverables? (CPPM 6.3.6.c)								
7.	Does Schedule A clearly identify the process the ministry will use to monitor the contractor's performance (e.g. frequency & format of reporting requirements)? (CPPM 6.3.6.c)				nance (e.g. frequency & format	Х			
8.	If sub-contractors will be providing a	any services, are	they identified in Sc	hedule C?			X		
9.	Has a Certificate of Insurance been	requested confi	rming all applicable in	nsurance as required i	in Sch	edule D? ( <u>CPPM 6.3.3.e.11</u> )	х		
10.	Will the contract be signed by both	parties before th	e start date of the co	ntract (the contractor	must s	ign first)? (CPPM 6.3.3.e.2)	Х		
11.	is the contract written in the legal nan organization)? (CPPM 6.3.3.e.3)	eme of the contr	actor (do not write the	e contract in the name	e of an	individual if the contract is with	Х		
		BEST	PRACTICES CHEC	KLIST				1 1 1 ()	
1.	If a contractor is ineligible for WCB	(Including Perso	nal Optional Protectio	on), has the EA given a	approv	ral to proceed?			Х
2.	If the contract crosses fiscal years, have confirmed appropriation?	does Schedule	A include language th	nat work must not proc	ceed in	the new fiscal year until you			×
3.	Has a WorkSafe BC (WCB) clearan	<u>ce letter</u> been ol	otained for inclusion i	n the contract file?			X		
4.	For contracts including travel expenses, have you attached the per diem rates as an appendix and referenced the appendix in Schedule B?								
	FIED RECIEVER/		ENSE AUTHORITY	(if required) email		EXECUTIVE APPROVAL (if reapproval acceptable	equire	d) en	nail

· •			' .			
September 19, 2013 Signature Date PRINT NAME		1 Date Sept. 24	Signajdro PRINT NAME MM S	J Stem d	jn <sup>Di</sup>	ate SCA
(Complete for modifications of the	PART C – M an existing contract only ing extended into anothe	if there is an inc	rease to the dollar value	or if the	cont	ract is
			CONTRACT NUMBER:	GS14	EPD-0	088
		<u>-</u>	MODIFICATION #:			
		·				
REASON FOR MODIFICATION:					<u></u>	
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TOTAL	\$	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<del></del>			
PREVIOUS CONTRACT TOTAL:	\$					
MODIFICATION AMOUNT:	\$		<del></del>			
NEW CONTRACT TOTAL:	\$					
PREVIOUS CONTRACT TERM:	From:		То:	<del></del> -		
NEW CONTRACT TERM:	From:		То:			
CORE POLICY C	OMPLIANCE - MODIFICA	ATIONS (See Insi	ructions)	Y	N	N/A
1. Is the existing contract still open?	Contracts cannot be modified	after they have exp	ired. CPPM 6.3.2.a.11			
2. Does the modification format comp 6.3.3.e.9?	oly with the <u>Modification Agree</u>	ement and the claus	es as stated in <u>CPPM</u>			
	BEST PRACTI	CES CHECKLIST				
The modification amount(s) must be approval requirements. Has the approval.	e added to the original amou	nt of the contract to	determine the new total for cation Agreement?			
<ul> <li>approval requirements. Has the appropriate expense authority approved the Modification Agreement?</li> <li>Is the modification compliant with the terms of the contract solicitation process (RFP etc.) or within 20% of original value? If no, include documentation to explain why the opportunity has not been offered to other vendors.</li> </ul>						
If this contract has been modified more than twice, have you included documentation to explain why the opportunity has not been offered to other vendors?						
					ET.	
EXPENSE AUTHORITY APPROVAL email &	pproval acceptable		ROVAL (if required) email appro	vai accepta	iole ,	400
Signature Date Signaturo Date						
PRINT NAME		PRINT NAME	Im Stander	Aon	<u> </u>	
- f						

#### **EOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTIONS**

#### Procurement Process DFF - List of Values

TOGGICE	Mainte 100035 Dr. 1 - Erist Or Validos
Code	<u>Description</u>
100	Open competitive process: An open competitive process (e.g., invitation to Quote, Request for Proposal, Joint Solution Procurement, invitation to Tender, or other) has been utilized, normally by advertising the opportunity on BC Bid. Core policy requires an open competitive process for amounts over \$75,000.
200	Direct Award - Public sector organization: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the contract is with another government organization.
201	Direct Award - Sole source: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the ministry can strictly prove that only one contractor is qualified to provide the goods, services or construction or is capable of engaging in a disposal opportunity.
202	Direct Award – Emergency: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where an unforeseeable emergency exists and the goods, services or construction could not be obtained in time by means of a competitive process.
203	Direct Award - Security, order, etc.: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where a competitive process would interfere with a ministry's ability to maintain security or order or to protect human, animal or plant life or health.
204	Direct Award - Confidentiality: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the acquisition is of a confidential or privileged nature and disclosure through an open bidding process could reasonably be expected to compromise government confidentiality, cause economic disruption or be contrary to the public interest.
205	Direct Award - Notice of Intent: A Notice of Intent must be posted on BC Bid when a contract for goods valued at more than \$10,000, or a contract for services or construction valued at more than \$50,000, is to be directly awarded on the basis that there is only one vendor that can provide the services required
206	Direct Award - No justification: Where a direct award has been made which is not justified under one of the exceptional conditions specified in the Core Policy Manual section 6.3.3 a (1), or a Notice of Intent has not been issued, or it is provided for under another policy.
207	Direct Award - Under \$25,000 - Contracts for acquisitions may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the value is less than \$25,000 for services and construction or less than \$10,000 for goods, and it is not reasonable or cost effective to openly compete the acquisition.
300	Direct Invitation to selected vendors: A competitive solicitation which is issued to a limited list of vendors and not advertised on BC Bid.
400	Selected vendor from pre-qualification list: A contract that is issued to a vendor on a pre-qualification list without undertaking a competitive process.
401	Competition among vendors on a pre-qualification list: A competitive solicitation which is Issued to a limited list of vendors selected from a pre-qualification list.
500	Purchase from a Corporate Supply Arrangement: A purchase from a pre-established corporate supply arrangement such as a MSO, SO, the Queen's Printer or other as identified in CPPM 6.3.2 a (1).
600	Other Purchase Process: Other recognized procurement process, such as the purchase card.
601	Other - Continuing Agreements: For second and subsequent years of multi-year agreements.

#### Agreement on Internal Trade DFF - List of Values

Description

602

Code

100	Purchase subject to AIT: The purchase is over the AIT thresholds (\$25K for goods and \$100K for services and construction) and is not excluded or exempted under any other provision of the AIT or other category below.
200	Purchase below applicable AIT threshold: The purchase is under the AIT thresholds (\$25K for goods and \$100K for services and construction).
300	Purchase of an exempted commodity/service: The purchase is for goods, services or construction that is exempted from coverage of the AiT by virtue of its specific reference in Chapter 5 of the agreement (e.g., health and social services).

- **Excluded Emergency:** A purchase where an unforeseeable situation of urgency exists and the goods, services or construction cannot be obtained in time by means of an open procurement.
- Excluded Security, order, etc.: A purchase where compliance with the open tendering provisions set out in Chapter 5 of the AIT would interfere with the Province's ability to maintain security or order or to protect human, animal or plant life or health.
- **Excluded Product compatibility/exclusive rights:** A purchase which must: ensure compatibility with existing products; recognize exclusive rights, such as exclusive licenses, copyright and patent rights; or maintain specialized products that must be maintained by the manufacturer or its representative.
- 700 Excluded Procurement of prototype: The procurement of a prototype or a first good or service to be developed in the course of and for a particular contract for research, experiment, study or original development, but not for any subsequent purchases.
- Excluded Regional/Economic development: A purchase which, under exceptional circumstances, may be excluded by the Province from the application of Chapter 5 of the AIT for regional and economic development purposes.

#### Code Descriptions for STOB 60, 61, and 63

The following definitions are to be used to classify contracts in STOBs 60, 61, and 63 which fall into the categories listed. If the contract does not fit into one of these broad categories, it should be excluded from the analysis. If the contract fails into more than 1 category, choose the predominant category.

Recoverable contracts should be identified as such and will be excluded from the information submitted to central agencies if submission is required.

GMA (General Management Advice) - Contracts providing information for, or advice on, the planning and/or management of programs.

Other - Transfer Under Agreement: For grants (both Conditional and Unconditional), Transfers and Entitlements.

HR/LR (Human Resources & LR) - Contracts providing Human Resources services or human resource related services such as coaching/facilitation and organizational design.

IT (IT Consulting) — Consulting services related to Information technology. This would include contracts consulting on systems development or management of systems. It would not include the work done to develop the system, writing code, data entry etc.

PRA (Policy, Research and Analysis) – Contracts providing planning services that contribute to or recommend policy, or consultation on policy issues; contracts that provide research and analysis to advise in program management.

PM (Project Management) - Contracts where an external project manager is hired to run a project or facilitate activities.

COM (Communications) - Contracts proving professional services related to the planning writing, preparation or distribution of communications

BSA (Business Support & Administrative) — Contracts where administrative support is supplied such as administrative service, filing, cataloguing, records administration, etc. Also includes Secretariat support services.

OP (Operational) - Contracts where non consulting type work is being performed that is performing a service that does not fit into one of the categories above. Examples include data entry, building fences, maintenance activities, writing and delivery of training program

OTH (Other) - Contracts which do not fall into any of the above categories.

AL

## GENERAL SERVICE AGREEMENT



For Administrative Purposes Only				
Ministry Contract No.: GS14EPD-088 Requisition No.: Solicitation No.(if applicable):	Financial Information  Client:048  Responsibility Centre: 2940A			
Contractor Information	Service Line:30592_   STOB:60\( \text{2540A} \)   Project:2900000			
Supplier Name: Limnotek Research & Development Inc. Supplier No.: 643569 300 # 001 Telephone No.: 604-222-3546 E-mail Address:cperrin@limnotek.com	Template version: April 1, 2013			
Website:www.limnotek.com				

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

No.	Heading		Page
1.	Definition	15	
	1.1	General	1
	1.2	Meaning of "record"	1
2.	Services		
	2.1	Provision of services	2
	2.2	Term	2
	2.3	Supply of various items	2
	2.4	Standard of care	2
	2.5	Standards in relation to persons performing Services	2
	2.6	Instructions by Province	2
	2.7	Confirmation of non-written instructions	2
	2.8	Effectiveness of non-written instructions	2
	2.9	Applicable laws	2
3.	Pavment		2
••	3.1	Fees and expenses	
	3.2	Statements of accounts	
	3.3	Withholding of amounts	
	3.4	Appropriation	
	3.5	Currency	
	3.6	Non-resident income tax	
	3.7	Prohibition against committing money	
	3.8	Refunds of taxes.	
4.	Representa	ations and Warranties	4
5.	Privacy, Se	ecurity and Confidentiality	4
	5.1	Privacy	
	5,2	Security	
	5.3	Confidentiality	
	5.4	Public announcements	
	5.5	Restrictions on promotion	5
6.	Material a	ind Intellectual Property	5
•	6.1	Access to Material	
	6.2	Ownership and delivery of Material	
	6.3	Matters respecting intellectual property	
	6.4	Rights relating to Incorporated Material	
7,	Records an	id Reports	5
•	7.1	Work reporting	
	7.2	Time and expense records	
Ω	Andit		6

			6
	9.1	Indemnity	
	9.2	Insurance	
	9.3	Workers compensation	
	9.4	Personal optional protection	
	9.5	Evidence of coverage	6
10.	Force Ma	jeure	7
	10.1	Definitions relating to force majeure	7
	10.2	Consequence of Event of Force Majeure	7
	10.3	Duties of Affected Party	7
11.	Default a	nd Termination	7
	11.1	Definitions relating to default and termination	7
	11.2	Province's options on default	8
	11.3	Delay not a waiver	
	11.4	Province's right to terminate other than for default	8
	11.5	Payment consequences of termination	
	11.6	Discharge of liability	
	11.7	Notice in relation to Events of Default	8
12.	Dispute R	Resolution	9
	12.1	Dispute resolution process	
	12.2	Location of arbitration or mediation	
	12.3	Costs of mediation or arbitration	9
13.	Miscellan	ieous	9
	13.1	Delivery of notices	9
	13.2	Change of address or fax number	9
	13.3	Assignment	9
	13.4	Subcontracting	10
	13.5	Waiver	10
	13.6	Modifications	10
	13.7	Entire agreement	10
	13.8	Survival of certain provisions	10
	13.9	Schedules	10
	13.10	Independent contractor	
	13.11	Personnel not to be employees of Province	10
	13.12	Key Personnel	
	13.13	Pertinent Information	
	13.14	Conflict of interest	
	13.15	Time	
	13.16	Conflicts among provisions	11
	13.17	Agreement not permit nor fetter	
	13.18	Remainder not affected by invalidity	
	13.19	Further assurances	
	13.20	Additional terms	
	13.21	Governing law	12
14.	Interpreta	tion	12
15	Evacution	and Delivery of Agreement	. 12

#### SCHEDULE A - SERVICES

Part 1 - Term

Part 2 - Services

Part 3 - Related Documentation

Part 4 - Key Personnel

#### SCHEDULE B - FEES AND EXPENSES

Part 1 - Maximum Amount Payable

Part 2 - Fees

Part 3 - Expenses

Part 4 - Statements of Account

Part 5 - Payments Due

SCHEDULE C - APPROVED SUBCONTRACTOR(S)

SCHEDULE D - INSURANCE

SCHEDULE E-PRIVACY PROTECTION SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE F - ADDITIONAL TERMS

SCHEDULE G - SECURITY SCHEDULE

THIS AGREEMENT is dated for reference the \_24th\_\_day of \_\_September\_\_\_, 2013.

BETWEEN:

Limnotek Research & Development Inc.

4035 W 14th Ave Vancouver BC

V6R 2X3

604-222-3546 (O) 604-222-3577 (fax) C/O Chris Perrin cperrin@limnotek.com

AND:

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, as represented by the Minister of Environment (the "Province") with the following specified address and fax number:

C/O Jim Standen, Assistant Deputy Minister

Ministry of Environment

Courier Address: 5th Floor - 2975 Jutland Road, Victoria, BC V8T 5J9 Mailing Address: PO Box 9339 Stn Prov Govt, Victoria, BC V8W 9M1

FAX NUMBER: 250-387-5669

The Province wishes to retain the Contractor to provide the services specified in Schedule A and, in consideration for the remuneration set out in Schedule B, the Contractor has agreed to provide those services, on the terms and conditions set out in this Agreement.

As a result, the Province and the Contractor agree as follows:

#### 1 DEFINITIONS

#### General

- 1.1 In this Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:
  - (a) "Business Day" means a day, other than a Saturday or Sunday, on which Provincial government offices are open for normal business in British Columbia;
  - (b) "Incorporated Material" means any material in existence prior to the start of the Term or developed independently of this Agreement, and that is incorporated or embedded in the Produced Material by the Contractor or a Subcontractor;
  - (c) "Material" means the Produced Material and the Received Material;
  - (d) "Produced Material" means records, software and other material, whether complete or not, that, as a result of this Agreement, are produced by the Contractor or a Subcontractor and includes the Incorporated Material;
  - (e) "Received Material" means records, software and other material, whether complete or not, that, as a result of this Agreement, are received by the Contractor or a Subcontractor from the Province or any other person;
  - (f) "Services" means the services described in Part 2 of Schedule A;
  - (g) "Subcontractor" means a person described in paragraph (a) or (b) of section 13.4; and
  - (h) "Term" means the term of the Agreement described in Part 1 of Schedule A subject to that term ending earlier in accordance with this Agreement.

Meaning of "record"

1.2 The definition of "record" in the *Interpretation Act* is incorporated into this Agreement and "records" will bear a corresponding meaning.

#### 2 SERVICES

Provision of services

2.1 The Contractor must provide the Services in accordance with this Agreement.

#### Term

2.2 Regardless of the date of execution or delivery of this Agreement, the Contractor must provide the Services during the Term.

#### Supply of various items

2.3 Unless the parties otherwise agree in writing, the Contractor must supply and pay for all labour, materials, equipment, tools, facilities, approvals and licenses necessary or advisable to perform the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement, including the license under section 6.4.

#### Standard of care

2.4 Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, the Contractor must perform the Services to a standard of care, skill and diligence maintained by persons providing, on a commercial basis, services similar to the Services.

#### Standards in relation to persons performing Services

2.5 The Contractor must ensure that all persons employed or retained to perform the Services are qualified and competent to perform them and are properly trained, instructed and supervised.

#### Instructions by Province

2.6 The Province may from time to time give the Contractor reasonable instructions (in writing or otherwise) as to the performance of the Services. The Contractor must comply with those instructions but, unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, the Contractor may determine the manner in which the instructions are carried out.

#### Confirmation of non-written instructions

2.7 If the Province provides an instruction under section 2.6 other than in writing, the Contractor may request that the instruction be confirmed by the Province in writing, which request the Province must comply with as soon as it is reasonably practicable to do so.

#### Effectiveness of non-written instructions

2.8 Requesting written confirmation of an instruction under section 2.7 does not relieve the Contractor from complying with the instruction at the time the instruction was given.

#### Applicable laws

2.9 In the performance of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement, the Contractor must comply with all applicable laws.

#### 3 PAYMENT

#### Fees and expenses

- 3.1 If the Contractor complies with this Agreement, then the Province must pay to the Contractor at the times and on the conditions set out in Schedule B:
  - (a) the fees described in that Schedule;

- (b) the expenses, if any, described in that Schedule if they are supported, where applicable, by proper receipts and, in the Province's opinion, are necessarily incurred by the Contractor in providing the Services; and
- (c) any applicable taxes payable by the Province under law or agreement with the relevant taxation authorities on the fees and expenses described in paragraphs (a) and (b).

The Province is not obliged to pay to the Contractor more than the "Maximum Amount" specified in Schedule B on account of fees and expenses.

#### Statements of accounts

3.2 In order to obtain payment of any fees and expenses under this Agreement, the Contractor must submit to the Province a written statement of account in a form satisfactory to the Province upon completion of the Services or at other times described in Schedule B.

#### Withholding of amounts

3.3 Without limiting section 9.1, the Province may withhold from any payment due to the Contractor an amount sufficient to indemnify, in whole or in part, the Province and its employees and agents against any liens or other third-party claims that have arisen or could arise in connection with the provision of the Services. An amount withheld under this section must be promptly paid by the Province to the Contractor upon the basis for withholding the amount having been fully resolved to the satisfaction of the Province.

#### Appropriation

3.4 The Province's obligation to pay money to the Contractor is subject to the *Financial Administration Act*, which makes that obligation subject to an appropriation being available in the fiscal year of the Province during which payment becomes due.

#### Currency

3.5 Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, all references to money are to Canadian dollars.

#### Non-resident income tax

3.6 If the Contractor is not a resident in Canada, the Contractor acknowledges that the Province may be required by law to withhold income tax from the fees described in Schedule B and then to remit that tax to the Receiver General of Canada on the Contractor's behalf.

## Prohibition against committing money

3.7 Without limiting section 13.10(a), the Contractor must not in relation to performing the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement commit or purport to commit the Province to pay any money except as may be expressly provided for in this Agreement.

#### Refunds of taxes

- 3.8 The Contractor must:
  - (a) apply for, and use reasonable efforts to obtain, any available refund, credit, rebate or remission of federal, provincial or other tax or duty imposed on the Contractor as a result of this Agreement that the Province has paid or reimbursed to the Contractor or agreed to pay or reimburse to the Contractor under this Agreement; and
  - (b) immediately on receiving, or being credited with, any amount applied for under paragraph (a), remit that amount to the Province.

#### REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

- 4.1 As at the date this Agreement is executed and delivered by, or on behalf of, the parties, the Contractor represents and warrants to the Province as follows:
  - (a) except to the extent the Contractor has previously disclosed otherwise in writing to the Province,
    - (i) all information, statements, documents and reports furnished or submitted by the Contractor to the Province in connection with this Agreement (including as part of any competitive process resulting in this Agreement being entered into) are in all material respects true and correct,
    - (ii) the Contractor has sufficient trained staff, facilities, materials, appropriate equipment and approved subcontractual agreements in place and available to enable the Contractor to fully perform the Services, and
    - (iii) the Contractor holds all permits, licenses, approvals and statutory authorities issued by any government or government agency that are necessary for the performance of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement; and
  - (b) if the Contractor is not an individual,
    - (i) the Contractor has the power and capacity to enter into this Agreement and to observe, perform and comply with the terms of this Agreement and all necessary corporate or other proceedings have been taken and done to authorize the execution and delivery of this Agreement by, or on behalf of, the Contractor, and
    - (ii) this Agreement has been legally and properly executed by, or on behalf of, the Contractor and is legally binding upon and enforceable against the Contractor in accordance with its terms except as enforcement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and except that equitable remedies may be granted only in the discretion of a court of competent jurisdiction.

#### 5 PRIVACY, SECURITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY

#### Privacy

4

5.1 The Contractor must comply with the Privacy Protection Schedule attached as Schedule E.

#### Security

- 5.2 The Contractor must:
  - (a) make reasonable security arrangements to protect the Material from unauthorized access, collection, use, disclosure, alteration or disposal; and
  - (b) comply with the Security Schedule attached as Schedule G.

#### Confidentiality

- 5.3 The Contractor must treat as confidential all information in the Material and all other information accessed or obtained by the Contractor or a Subcontractor (whether verbally, electronically or otherwise) as a result of this Agreement, and not permit its disclosure or use without the Province's prior written consent except:
  - (a) as required to perform the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement or to comply with applicable laws;
  - (b) if it is information that is generally known to the public other than as result of a breach of this Agreement; or
  - (c) if it is information in any Incorporated Material.

#### Public announcements

5.4 Any public announcement relating to this Agreement will be arranged by the Province and, if such consultation is reasonably practicable, after consultation with the Contractor.

#### Restrictions on promotion

5.5 The Contractor must not, without the prior written approval of the Province, refer for promotional purposes to the Province being a customer of the Contractor or the Province having entered into this Agreement.

## 6 MATERIAL AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

#### Access to Material

6.1 If the Contractor receives a request for access to any of the Material from a person other than the Province, and this Agreement does not require or authorize the Contractor to provide that access, the Contractor must promptly advise the person to make the request to the Province.

#### Ownership and delivery of Material

6.2 The Province exclusively owns all property rights in the Material which are not intellectual property rights. The Contractor must deliver any Material to the Province immediately upon the Province's request.

#### Matters respecting intellectual property

- 6.3 The Province exclusively owns all intellectual property rights, including copyright, in:
  - (a) Received Material that the Contractor receives from the Province; and
  - (b) Produced Material, other than any Incorporated Material.

Upon the Province's request, the Contractor must deliver to the Province documents satisfactory to the Province that irrevocably waive in the Province's favour any moral rights which the Contractor (or employees of the Contractor) or a Subcontractor (or employees of a Subcontractor) may have in the Produced Material and that confirm the vesting in the Province of the copyright in the Produced Material, other than any Incorporated Material.

#### Rights in relation to Incorporated Material

- 6.4 Upon any Incorporated Material being embedded or incorporated in the Produced Material and to the extent that it remains so embedded or incorporated, the Contractor grants to the Province:
  - (a) a non-exclusive, perpetual, irrevocable, royalty-free, worldwide license to use, reproduce, modify and distribute that Incorporated Material; and
  - (b) the right to sublicense to third-parties the right to use, reproduce, modify and distribute that Incorporated Material.

#### 7 RECORDS AND REPORTS

#### Work reporting

7.1 Upon the Province's request, the Contractor must fully inform the Province of all work done by the Contractor or a Subcontractor in connection with providing the Services.

#### Time and expense records

7.2 If Schedule B provides for the Contractor to be paid fees at a daily or hourly rate or for the Contractor to be paid or reimbursed for expenses, the Contractor must maintain time records and books of account, invoices, receipts and vouchers of expenses in support of those payments, in form and content satisfactory to the Province. Unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, the Contractor must retain such documents for a period of not less than seven years after this Agreement ends.

#### 8 AUDIT

8.1 In addition to any other rights of inspection the Province may have under statute or otherwise, the Province may at any reasonable time and on reasonable notice to the Contractor, enter on the Contractor's premises to inspect and, at the Province's discretion, copy any of the Material and the Contractor must permit, and provide reasonable assistance to, the exercise by the Province of the Province's rights under this section.

#### 9 INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

#### Indemnity

9.1 The Contractor must indemnify and save harmless the Province and the Province's employees and agents from any losses, claims, damages, actions, causes of action, costs and expenses that the Province or any of the Province's employees or agents may sustain, incur, suffer or be put to at any time, either before or after this Agreement ends, including any claim of infringement of third-party intellectual property rights, where the same or any of them are based upon, arise out of or occur, directly or indirectly, by reason of any act or omission by the Contractor or by any of the Contractor's agents, employees, officers, directors or Subcontractors in connection with this Agreement, excepting always liability arising out of the independent acts or omissions of the Province and the Province's employees and agents.

#### Insurance

9.2 The Contractor must comply with the Insurance Schedule attached as Schedule D.

#### Workers compensation

9.3 Without limiting the generality of section 2.9, the Contractor must comply with, and must ensure that any Subcontractors comply with, all applicable occupational health and safety laws in relation to the performance of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement, including the *Workers Compensation Act* in British Columbia or similar laws in other jurisdictions.

#### Personal optional protection

- 9.4 The Contractor must apply for and maintain personal optional protection insurance (consisting of income replacement and medical care coverage) during the Term at the Contractor's expense if:
  - (a) the Contractor is an individual or a partnership of individuals and does not have the benefit of mandatory workers compensation coverage under the *Workers Compensation Act* or similar laws in other jurisdictions; and
  - (b) such personal optional protection insurance is available for the Contractor from WorkSafeBC or other sources.

#### Evidence of coverage

9.5 Within 10 Business Days of being requested to do so by the Province, the Contractor must provide the Province with evidence of the Contractor's compliance with sections 9.3 and 9.4.

#### 10 FORCE MAJEURE

Definitions relating to force majeure

- 10.1 In this section and sections 10.2 and 10.3:
  - (a) "Event of Force Majeure" means one of the following events:
    - (i) a natural disaster, fire, flood, storm, epidemic or power failure,
    - (ii) a war (declared and undeclared), insurrection or act of terrorism or piracy,
    - (iii) a strike (including illegal work stoppage or slowdown) or lockout, or
    - (iv) a freight embargo

if the event prevents a party from performing the party's obligations in accordance with this Agreement and is beyond the reasonable control of that party; and

(b) "Affected Party" means a party prevented from performing the party's obligations in accordance with this Agreement by an Event of Force Majeure.

## Consequence of Event of Force Majeure

An Affected Party is not liable to the other party for any failure or delay in the performance of the Affected Party's obligations under this Agreement resulting from an Event of Force Majeure and any time periods for the performance of such obligations are automatically extended for the duration of the Event of Force Majeure provided that the Affected Party complies with the requirements of section 10.3.

#### **Duties of Affected Party**

10.3 An Affected Party must promptly notify the other party in writing upon the occurrence of the Event of Force Majeure and make all reasonable efforts to prevent, control or limit the effect of the Event of Force Majeure so as to resume compliance with the Affected Party's obligations under this Agreement as soon as possible.

## 11 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

Definitions relating to default and termination

- 11.1 In this section and sections 11.2 to 11.4:
  - (a) "Event of Default" means any of the following:
    - (i) an Insolvency Event,
    - (ii) the Contractor fails to perform any of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement, or
    - (iii) any representation or warranty made by the Contractor in this Agreement is untrue or incorrect; and
  - (b) "Insolvency Event" means any of the following:
    - (i) an order is made, a resolution is passed or a petition is filed, for the Contractor's liquidation or winding up,
    - (ii) the Contractor commits an act of bankruptcy, makes an assignment for the benefit of the Contractor's creditors or otherwise acknowledges the Contractor's insolvency,
    - (iii) a bankruptcy petition is filed or presented against the Contractor or a proposal under the *Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act* (Canada) is made by the Contractor,
    - (iv) a compromise or arrangement is proposed in respect of the Contractor under the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act (Canada),
    - (v) a receiver or receiver-manager is appointed for any of the Contractor's property, or

(vi) the Contractor ceases, in the Province's reasonable opinion, to carry on business as a going concern.

#### Province's options on default

- On the happening of an Event of Default, or at any time thereafter, the Province may, at its option, elect to do any one or more of the following:
  - (a) by written notice to the Contractor, require that the Event of Default be remedied within a time period specified in the notice;
  - (b) pursue any remedy or take any other action available to it at law or in equity; or
  - (c) by written notice to the Contractor, terminate this Agreement with immediate effect or on a future date specified in the notice, subject to the expiration of any time period specified under section 11.2(a).

#### Delay not a waiver

11.3 No failure or delay on the part of the Province to exercise its rights in relation to an Event of Default will constitute a waiver by the Province of such rights.

#### Province's right to terminate other than for default

11.4 In addition to the Province's right to terminate this Agreement under section 11.2(c) on the happening of an Event of Default, the Province may terminate this Agreement for any reason by giving at least 10 days' written notice of termination to the Contractor.

#### Payment consequences of termination

- 11.5 Unless Schedule B otherwise provides, if the Province terminates this Agreement under section 11.4:
  - (a) the Province must, within 30 days of such termination, pay to the Contractor any unpaid portion of the fees and expenses described in Schedule B which corresponds with the portion of the Services that was completed to the Province's satisfaction before termination of this Agreement; and
  - (b) the Contractor must, within 30 days of such termination, repay to the Province any paid portion of the fees and expenses described in Schedule B which corresponds with the portion of the Services that the Province has notified the Contractor in writing was not completed to the Province's satisfaction before termination of this Agreement.

#### Discharge of liability

11.6 The payment by the Province of the amount described in section 11.5(a) discharges the Province from all liability to make payments to the Contractor under this Agreement.

#### Notice in relation to Events of Default

11.7 If the Contractor becomes aware that an Event of Default has occurred or anticipates that an Event of Default is likely to occur, the Contractor must promptly notify the Province of the particulars of the Event of Default or anticipated Event of Default. A notice under this section as to the occurrence of an Event of Default must also specify the steps the Contractor proposes to take to address, or prevent recurrence of, the Event of Default. A notice under this section as to an anticipated Event of Default must specify the steps the Contractor proposes to take to prevent the occurrence of the anticipated Event of Default.

#### 12 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

#### Dispute resolution process

- 12.1 In the event of any dispute between the parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, the following dispute resolution process will apply unless the parties otherwise agree in writing:
  - (a) the parties must initially attempt to resolve the dispute through collaborative negotiation;
  - (b) if the dispute is not resolved through collaborative negotiation within 15 Business Days of the dispute arising, the parties must then attempt to resolve the dispute through mediation under the rules of the British Columbia Mediator Roster Society; and
  - (c) if the dispute is not resolved through mediation within 30 Business Days of the commencement of mediation, the dispute must be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration under the *Arbitration Act*.

#### Location of arbitration or mediation

12.2 Unless the parties otherwise agree in writing, an arbitration or mediation under section 12.1 will be held in Victoria, British Columbia.

#### Costs of mediation or arbitration

Unless the parties otherwise agree in writing or, in the case of an arbitration, the arbitrator otherwise orders, the parties must share equally the costs of a mediation or arbitration under section 12.1 other than those costs relating to the production of expert evidence or representation by counsel.

#### 13 MISCELLANEOUS

#### Delivery of notices

- 13.1 Any notice contemplated by this Agreement, to be effective, must be in writing and delivered as follows:
  - (a) by fax to the addressee's fax number specified on the first page of this Agreement, in which case it will be deemed to be received on the day of transmittal unless transmitted after the normal business hours of the addressee or on a day that is not a Business Day, in which cases it will be deemed to be received on the next following Business Day;
  - (b) by hand to the addressee's address specified on the first page of this Agreement, in which case it will be deemed to be received on the day of its delivery; or
  - (c) by prepaid post to the addressee's address specified on the first page of this Agreement, in which case if mailed during any period when normal postal services prevail, it will be deemed to be received on the fifth Business Day after its mailing.

#### Change of address or fax number

13.2 Either party may from time to time give notice to the other party of a substitute address or fax number, which from the date such notice is given will supersede for purposes of section 13.1 any previous address or fax number specified for the party giving the notice.

#### Assignment

13.3 The Contractor must not assign any of the Contractor's rights under this Agreement without the Province's prior written consent.

#### Subcontracting

- 13.4 The Contractor must not subcontract any of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement to any person without the Province's prior written consent, excepting persons listed in the attached Schedule C. No subcontract, whether consented to or not, relieves the Contractor from any obligations under this Agreement. The Contractor must ensure that:
  - (a) any person retained by the Contractor to perform obligations under this Agreement; and
  - (b) any person retained by a person described in paragraph (a) to perform those obligations fully complies with this Agreement in performing the subcontracted obligations.

#### Waiver

13.5 A waiver of any term or breach of this Agreement is effective only if it is in writing and signed by, or on behalf of, the waiving party and is not a waiver of any other term or breach.

#### Modifications

13.6 No modification of this Agreement is effective unless it is in writing and signed by, or on behalf of, the parties.

#### Entire agreement

13.7 This Agreement (including any modification of it) constitutes the entire agreement between the parties as to performance of the Services.

#### Survival of certain provisions

13.8 Sections 2.9, 3.1 to 3.4, 3.7, 3.8, 5.1 to 5.5, 6.1 to 6.4, 7.1, 7.2, 8.1, 9.1, 9.2, 9.5, 10.1 to 10.3, 11.2, 11.3, 11.5, 11.6, 12.1 to 12.3, 13.1, 13.2, 13.8, and 13.10, any accrued but unpaid payment obligations, and any other sections of this Agreement (including schedules) which, by their terms or nature, are intended to survive the completion of the Services or termination of this Agreement, will continue in force indefinitely, even after this Agreement ends.

#### Schedules

13.9 The schedules to this Agreement (including any appendices or other documents attached to, or incorporated by reference into, those schedules) are part of this Agreement.

#### Independent contractor

- 13.10 In relation to the performance of the Contractor's obligations under this Agreement, the Contractor is an independent contractor and not:
  - (a) an employee or partner of the Province; or
  - (b) an agent of the Province except as may be expressly provided for in this Agreement.

The Contractor must not act or purport to act contrary to this section.

#### Personnel not to be employees of Province

13.11 The Contractor must not do anything that would result in personnel hired or used by the Contractor or a Subcontractor in relation to providing the Services being considered employees of the Province.

#### Key Personnel

13.12 If one or more individuals are specified as "Key Personnel" of the Contractor in Part 4 of Schedule A, the Contractor must cause those individuals to perform the Services on the Contractor's behalf, unless the Province otherwise approves in writing, which approval must not be unreasonably withheld.

#### Pertinent information

13.13 The Province must make available to the Contractor all information in the Province's possession which the Province considers pertinent to the performance of the Services.

#### Conflict of interest

13.14 The Contractor must not provide any services to any person in circumstances which, in the Province's reasonable opinion, could give rise to a conflict of interest between the Contractor's duties to that person and the Contractor's duties to the Province under this Agreement.

#### Time

13.15 Time is of the essence in this Agreement and, without limitation, will remain of the essence after any modification or extension of this Agreement, whether or not expressly restated in the document effecting the modification or extension.

#### Conflicts among provisions

- 13.16 Conflicts among provisions of this Agreement will be resolved as follows:
  - a provision in the body of this Agreement will prevail over any conflicting provision in, attached to or incorporated by reference into a schedule, unless that conflicting provision expressly states otherwise; and
  - (b) a provision in a schedule will prevail over any conflicting provision in a document attached to or incorporated by reference into a schedule, unless the schedule expressly states otherwise.

#### Agreement not permit nor fetter

13.17 This Agreement does not operate as a permit, license, approval or other statutory authority which the Contractor may be required to obtain from the Province or any of its agencies in order to provide the Services. Nothing in this Agreement is to be construed as interfering with, or fettering in any manner, the exercise by the Province or its agencies of any statutory, prerogative, executive or legislative power or duty.

#### Remainder not affected by invalidity

13.18 If any provision of this Agreement or the application of it to any person or circumstance is invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to any other person or circumstance will not be affected or impaired and will be valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

#### Further assurances

13.19 Each party must perform the acts, execute and deliver the writings, and give the assurances as may be reasonably necessary to give full effect to this Agreement.

#### Additional terms

13.20 Any additional terms set out in the attached Schedule F apply to this Agreement.

#### Governing law

13.21 This Agreement is governed by, and is to be interpreted and construed in accordance with, the laws applicable in British Columbia.

#### 14 INTERPRETATION

- 14.1 In this Agreement:
  - (a) "includes" and "including" are not intended to be limiting;
  - (b) unless the context otherwise requires, references to sections by number are to sections of this Agreement;
  - (c) the Contractor and the Province are referred to as "the parties" and each of them as a "party";
  - (d) "attached" means attached to this Agreement when used in relation to a schedule;
  - (e) unless otherwise specified, a reference to a statute by name means the statute of British Columbia by that name, as amended or replaced from time to time;
  - (f) the headings have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not intended to describe, enlarge or restrict the scope or meaning of this Agreement or any provision of it;
  - (g) "person" includes an individual, partnership, corporation or legal entity of any nature; and
  - (h) unless the context otherwise requires, words expressed in the singular include the plural and *vice* versa.

#### 15 EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF AGREEMENT

15.1 This Agreement may be entered into by a separate copy of this Agreement being executed by, or on behalf of, each party and that executed copy being delivered to the other party by a method provided for in section 13.1 or any other method agreed to by the parties.

The parties have executed this Agreement as follows:

SIGNED on the24th day ofSeptember, 2013 by the Contractor (or, if not an individual,	SIGNED on the <u>25</u> day of <u>Soptimize</u> , 20 13 on behalf of the Province
on its behalf by its authorized	by its duly authorized representative:
signatory or signatories):	m L
Signature(s)	Signature
Chris Perrin Print Name(s)	Jim Standen Print Name
President Print Title(s)	Assistant Deputy Minister Print Title

#### Schedule A - Services

#### PART 1. TERM:

- 1. Subject to section 2 of this Part 1, The term of this Agreement commences on September 23, 2013 and ends on January 31, 2014.
- 2. There is an option to extend the contract by 90 days, if deemed necessary by the Province.

#### PART 2. SERVICES:

#### The Contractor must deliver the following required services.

- 1. The contractor will collect soil and surface water samples, in the Kitimat airshed, as defined by the attached study area map (appendix 4a and 4b). At a minimum, 25 soil samples and 17 surface water samples will be obtained. The approximate sampling locations will be chosen from a list of locations provided on the attached list in appendix 5a and 5b. Given that there may be access and weather constraints in sampling some locations, more candidate locations have been provided than will be sampled. Exact locations sampled will be at the discretion of the contractor. Geo-location coordinates will be established for each site sampled. Soil and surface water sampling methods will follow those specified in Appendix 6a and 6b
- 2. Each soil sample to a maximum of 25 will be prepared, and chemically analyzed according to the methods specified in appendix 6b
- 3. Each surface water sample will be prepared and chemically analyzed according to the methods specified in appendix 6a
- All results of chemical analyses for each soil and surface water sample will be included in a data report, along with geo-location and other relevant site description information.

#### Outputs

The Contractor must complete the sampling work by October 31, 2013. Chemical analyses must be completed by December 31, 2013. A data report of field and laboratory methods and a listing of all data must be provided to the Province by January 31, 2014.

#### Inputs

The Contractor must use personnel who are trained in the safety systems necessary for sampling surface water and soils in remote locations, using helicopter support. Training and field work procedures must follow the safety plan attached as Appendix 7

Sample analyses will be conducted or supervised by Trent University, following procedures specified in Appendix 6a and 6b.

#### Outcomes

Through the delivery of the Services the Province wishes to realize the following outcomes and, without limiting the obligation of the Contractor to comply with other provisions of this Part, the Contractor must use commercially reasonable efforts to achieve them:

- 1. Data that is required for calculation of critical load of acidity to the sampled lakes and soils
- 2. Information that will be useful to the province and a range of stakeholders in assessing the potential acidification impacts of air emissions from existing and proposed industries in the Kitimat area
- 3. Information that will assist in providing local First Nations with information useful in assessing the potential effects of industrial air emissions on their asserted traditional territories

The parties acknowledge that the Contractor does not warrant that these outcomes will be achieved.

#### Reporting requirements

• Reporting will utilize Microsoft Word and/or Excel software. Accompanying map(s) will be in a format that is compatible with Provincial standards.

- Email reports of progress with field and laboratory activities will be submitted weekly to monthly.
- A data report of field and laboratory methods and a listing of all data will be provided by January 31, 2014.

#### PART 3. RELATED DOCUMENTATION:

- 1. The Contractor must perform the Services in accordance with the obligations set out in this Schedule A including any engagement letter, Solicitation document excerpt, proposal excerpt or other documentation attached as an Appendix to, or specified as being incorporated by reference in, this Schedule.
- 2. The following are Appendices to this Schedule A:

Appendix 1 – Engagement Letter	NOT APPLICABLE
Appendix 2 – Solicitation document excerpt	NOT APPLICABLE
Appendix 3 – Proposal excerpt	NOT APPLICABLE
Appendix 4 – Study Area Map	ATTACHED
Appendix 5 – Sampling location Maps	ATTACHED
Appendix 6 - Sample Collection, Preparation and Analysis Methods	ATTACHED
Appendix 7 - Field Safety Training Specifications & Procedures	ATTACHED

PART 4. KEY PERSONNEL: NOT APPLICABLE

Schedule B – Fees and Expenses

#### 1. MAXIMUM AMOUNT PAYABLE:

<u>Maximum Amount</u>: Despite sections 2 and 3 of this Schedule, \$160,000 is the maximum amount which the Province is obliged to pay to the Contractor for fees and expenses under this Agreement (exclusive of any applicable taxes described in section 3.1(c) of this Agreement).

#### 2. PROFESSIONAL FEES:

**Hourly Rate** 

Fees: at the following rates

Name	Activity	Rate (\$/hour)	Eligibility for travel, hotel, and meal expense claim*
C. Perrin	Project manager, Water quality lead		Eligible
D. Ramos	Water instrument specialist		Eligible
S. Bennett	Water quality specialist		Not eligible
Cambria Gordon QA/management	Soils procedures QA	s.22	Not eligible
Cambria Gordon tech1	Soils field sampling (senior tech)		Not eligible
Cambria Gordon tech2 (field)	Soils field sampling (junior tech)	_	Not eligible
Cambria Gordon tech3 (GIS)	Soils logistics planning		Not eligible
Casley	GIS		Not eligible

\*Eligibility for travel, hotel, and meal expense claims means the person is based in Vancouver and will be travelling to the project site. Not eligible for travel, hotel, and meal expense claims means the person is based in Terrace and will not have travel, hotel, and meal expenses or the person will not be travelling for project activities.

## **EQUIPMENT AND LAB FEES**

Equipment and lab fees at the following rates:

Description	Rate
OSC&CC: Office Supplies, Copies	3% of professional fees
and Communications Costs (In-	
house support & supplies charges:	
long distance calls, faxes,	
photocopies and miscellaneous	
office supplies) @ 3% of	
Professional Fees .	
Survey and safety supplies use for	\$100/d
soil sampling	
Soil sampling gear use	\$80/d
Soils lab fee	\$500/site
Truck use	\$200/d/truck
Instrument and equipment use for	\$245/d
water sampling (YSI Sonde,	
VanDorn bottle, sat phone, depth	

sounder rigged for deployment from helicopter, digital SLR camera	
Water lab fee (Trent University)	\$162/sample
Water lab fee (ALS)	\$34.80/sample

#### 3. EXPENSES:

Travel, hotel and meal expenses: See table under Number 2 above showing eligibility for travel, hotel, and meal expense claims.

Other Expenses at cost and excluding goods and services tax ("GST") or other applicable tax paid or payable by the Contractor on expenses to the extent that the Contractor is entitled to claim credits (including GST input tax credits), rebates, refunds or remissions of the tax from the relevant taxation authorities. Other expenses include but are not limited to freight and courier, truck rental, fuel for rental truck, helicopter time, sample preservative.

#### 4. STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNT:

<u>Statements of Account</u>: In order to obtain payment of any fees and expenses under this Agreement for a period from and including the 1st day of a month to and including the last day of that month (each a "Billing Period"), the Contractor must deliver to the Province on a date after the Billing Period (each a "Billing Date"), a written statement of account in a form satisfactory to the Province containing:

- (a) the Contractor's legal name and address;
- (b) the date of the statement, and the Billing Period to which the statement pertains;
- (c) the Contractor's calculation of all fees claimed for that Billing Period, including a declaration by the Contractor of all hours worked on each day during the Billing Period
- (d) a listing, in reasonable detail, of any expenses claimed by the Contractor for the Billing Period with receipts attached, if applicable, and, if the Contractor is claiming reimbursement of any GST or other applicable taxes paid or payable by the Contractor in relation to those expenses, a description of any credits, rebates, refunds or remissions the Contractor is entitled to from the relevant taxation authorities in relation to those taxes;
- (e) the Contractor's calculation of any applicable taxes payable by the Province in relation to the Services for the Billing Period;
- (f) an Agreement number;
- (g) an invoice number for identification; and
- (h) any other billing information reasonably requested by the Province.

#### 5. PAYMENTS DUE:

<u>Payments Due</u>: Within 30 days of the Province's receipt of the Contractor's written statement of account delivered in accordance with this Schedule, the Province must pay the Contractor the fees and expenses (plus all applicable taxes) claimed in the statement if they are in accordance with this Schedule.

## Schedule C – Approved Subcontractor(s)

Cambria Gordon Ltd. is an approved subcontractor, having a place of business at the following address:

4623 Park Avenue Terrace, B.C. V8G 1V5

#### Schedule D - Insurance

- The Contractor must, without limiting the Contractor's obligations or liabilities and at the Contractor's own expense, purchase and maintain throughout the Term the following insurances with insurers licensed in Canada in forms and amounts acceptable to the Province:
  - (a) Commercial General Liability in an amount not less than \$2,000,000.00 inclusive per occurrence against bodily injury, personal injury and property damage and including liability assumed under this Agreement and this insurance must
    - (i) include the Province as an additional insured,
    - (ii) be endorsed to provide the Province with 30 days advance written notice of cancellation or material change, and
    - (iii) include a cross liability clause.
- 2. All insurance described in section 1 of this Schedule must:
  - (a) be primary; and
  - (b) not require the sharing of any loss by any insurer of the Province.
- 3. The Contractor must provide the Province with evidence of all required insurance as follows:
  - (a) within 10 Business Days of commencement of the Services, the Contractor must provide to the Province evidence of all required insurance in the form of a completed Certificate of Insurance;
  - (b) if any required insurance policy expires before the end of the Term, the Contractor must provide to the Province within 10 Business Days of the policy's expiration, evidence of a new or renewal policy meeting the requirements of the expired insurance in the form of a completed Certificate of Insurance; and
  - (c) despite paragraph (a) or (b) above, if requested by the Province at any time, the Contractor must provide to the Province certified copies of the required insurance policies.
- 4. The Contractor must obtain, maintain and pay for any additional insurance which the Contractor is required by law to carry, or which the Contractor considers necessary to cover risks not otherwise covered by insurance specified in this Schedule in the Contractor's sole discretion.

## Schedule E – Privacy Protection Schedule

## NOT APPLICABLE

Schedule F - Additional Terms

NOT APPLICABLE

## Schedule G – Security Schedule

NOT APPLICABLE



#### Assessment Department Location Mailing Address

PO Box 5350 Station Terminal Vancouver BC V6B 5L5

6951 Westminster Highway Richmond BC V7C 1C6 www.worksafebc.com

#### Clearance Section

Telephone 604 244 6380 Toll Free within Canada 1 888 922 2768 Fax 604 244 6390

**BC Ministry of Environment** Box 5000 SMITHERS, BC V0J 2N0

September 14, 2013

Person/Business: LIMNOTEK RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT INC 325447 AA(001)

This letter provides clearance information for the purposes of Section 51 of the Workers Compensation Act.

We confirm that the above-referenced firm is active, in good standing, and has met WorkSafeBC's criteria for advance clearance. Accordingly, if the addressee on this letter is the prime contractor, the addressee will not be held liable for the amount of any assessment payable for work undertaken by the above-referenced firm to October 01, 2013.

This firm has had continuous coverage with us since March 23, 1984.

**Employer Service Centre** Assessment Department

Clearance Reference #: C127454098 CLRAAA

For more information about Section 51 and clearance letters visit WorkSafeBC.com

Please refer to your account number in your correspondence or when contacting the Assessment Department. To alter this document constitutes fraud.





## MODIFICATION AGREEMENT

Min Contract No.: GS14EPD-088

Resp: 2940A Serv. Line: 30592 Stob: 6002 Project: 2900000

WCB No.: 325447 Modification No.: 01

#### BETWEEN

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, represented by

the Minister of Environment (the "Province") with the following specified address and fax number;

C/O Jim Standen, Assistant Deputy Minister

Ministry of Environment

Courier Address: 5th Floor - 2975 Jutland Road, Victoria, BC V8T 5J9 Mailing Address: PO Box 9339 Stn Prov Govt, Victoria, BC V8W 9M1

FAX NUMBER: 250-387-5669

(the "Province", "we", "us" or "our", as applicable)

AND

Limnotek Research & Development Inc.

4035 W 14th Ave Vancouver BC V6R 2X3 604-222-3546 (O) 604-222-3577 (fax) C/O Chris Perrin cperrin@limnotek.com

(the "Contractor", "you" or "your" as applicable)

#### BACKGROUND

- A. The parties entered into an agreement dated November 13, 2013, contract number GS14EPD-088, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 1 (the "Agreement"). (Note: or uniquely identify the contract in some other way)
- B. The parties have agreed to modify the Agreement.

#### AGREEMENT

The parties agree as follows:

Part of the field work portion of the contract has resulted in savings. Some of these savings will be allocated to
include the addition of laboratory analyses of lake water samples obtained during the previous field work. The
contract maximum will not be exceeded with this change in scope.

The change in scope includes the cost of adding total nitrogen (TN) and total phosphorus (TP) to all DCAS sites and to the RTA sites that will be included in the MOE acidification study plus blanks and duplicates. Forty-two samples are estimated to be analyzed for TN and TP. The dollar amount is \$40.80/sample for an estimated fee of \$1713.60 to run all analyses. The lab fee for the TN and TP analyses will show as a separate line item on invoices.

In all other respects, the Agreement is confirmed.

SIGNED AND DELIVERED on the 13th day of November 2013 on behalf of the Province by its duly authorized representative:

SIGNATURE

PRINT NAME Jim Hofweber

for Jim Standen Assistant Deputy Minister

NOE-2013-0031

SIGNED AND DELIVERED on the 13 day of November, 2013 by or on behalf of the Contractor (or by its authorized signatories if the Contractor is a corporation):

SIGNATURE

PRINT NAME Chris Perrin

#### Gilmour, Lori ENV:EX

From:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent:

Wednesday, November 13, 2013 11:50 AM

To:

Hofweber, Jim E ENV:EX

Cc:

Gilmour, Lori ENV:EX; 'Chris Perrin'; Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Subject: Attachments: FW: Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soil&lakesamplingcontract Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soillakesamplingcontract edited by

Perrin.docx

Jim: please sign this modification agreement on behalf of Jim Standen. Please call if you need more information. Thanks.

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Chris Perrin [mailto:cperrin@limnotek.com]
Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2013 11:38 AM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Subject: RE: Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soil&lakesamplingcontract

HI lan;

Thanks for preparing the modification agreement. Edits are attached for your approval. If you accept all changes in track changes, its good to go for signing at your end.

Chris

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX [mailto:Ian.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca]

Sent: November-13-13 11:00 AM

To: Chris Perrin

Subject: FW: Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soil&lakesamplingcontract

Chris: Please add your WCB #, edit the change in the service part if I missed something. Then sign, scan and send to Jim Hofweber for his signature on behalf of the province. Please cc Lori Gilmour and me when you do this.

Jim: When you get the signed version of this, please sign, scan and send back to me. I will then have it processed with the contracts people.

Thanks both!

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

#### Muir, Deanna CSNR:EX

From:

Laine, Dan J CSNR:EX

Sent:

Tuesday, September 10, 2013 11:36 AM

To:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

abcomments.docx

Subject:

RE: Environmental assessment - Kitimat

Attachments:

Not Responsive

FBC NOI

Per your request....

Dan Laine

Contract Procurement Specialist Financial Services Branch Corporate Services for the Natural Resource Sector Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations

250 953-3813 ph

Please consider the environment before printing

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2013 11:24 AM

To: Laine, Dan J CSNR:EX

Cc: Manahan, Suzanne MNGD:EX; Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Subject: Environmental assessment - Kitimat

Thanks Dan. I am in contact with Suzanne Manahan regarding the potential to get a direct award approved at the DM level, provided the overall project is approved.

Two questions remain:

- 1) Can I post a notice of intent on a provisional basis prior to overall project approval, or does it constitute a promise of some kind? Otherwise it is likely that
- 2) How much detail would be needed for the notice of intent?

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio

Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Laine, Dan J CSNR:EX

Sent: Tuesday, September 10, 2013 11:18 AM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Subject: Environmental assessment - Kitimat

Importance: High

Hi lan,

I discussed this issue with my manager, Barb Burrage.

Not Responsive

#### Not Responsive

()

## Regards

## Dan Laine

Contract Procurement Specialist
Financial Services Branch Corporate Services for the Natural Resource Sector
Ministry of Forests, Lands and Natural Resource Operations 250 953-3813 ph

Please consider the environment before printing

# THE FOLLOWING BLUE TEXT SECTION IS FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE ONLY IN COMPLETING THE BC BID ADVERTISEMENT AND DOES NOT FORM THE FINAL NOTICE OF INTENT TO DIRECT AWARD ADVERTISEMENT

- This notice is published on BC Bid and optionally in your local print media for service/works contracts valued at over \$50,000 that do not meet one of the allowable direct award exemptions outlined in Chapter 7.3.3.
- To **print** the BC Bid advertising checklist, enter the page range **p1s1-p1s1** respectively in the page range box.
- Once the final document has been completed, **delete** the checklist to prevent proponents from viewing information intended for internal use only.

## **BC BID INPUT INFORMATION** Allow a minimum of 8 days advertising on BC Bid 1. **Document Number** (Contract number): 2. Postpone Publish Date and Time (used to post-date the ad): 3. Closing Date & Time (local) (forms the heading on the "search results"): 4. Establish the BC Bid Commodity Code, provide details on the type of service to be performed (i.e., Stand Management – Arborist Services): 5. Summary Details (the advertisement in the next section will form the Summary Details for BC Bid) OPTIONAL ADVERTISING - policy requires these ads are made through the Public Affairs Bureau (refer to Chapter 11 of the Contract Management Manual) ■ Local Newspapers ■ Other **ADVERTISING DATES:** ■ Advertise once only on (date); or ■ Advertise between (dates inclusive); or Advertise on

FS1282 Rev. November 2010

Ensure adequate time between last advertising date and closing date,



## Notice of Intent to Direct Award a Contract

The Ministry of Enter Ministry: Natural Resource Operations or Forests, Mines and Lands, ministry office name and location, is intending to direct award a insert type: e.g., forest research, systems development, etc.) contract for the following proposed work/service:

• Insert brief description of the work/service;

The proposed work/service is to be carried out by insert full legal name of proposed contractor at a contract price of less than \$ insert price.

(Optional) The anticipated term of the contract is from insert start date to insert end date. (Do not direct award multi-year or option-to-renew contracts.)

The contractor's qualifications required to complete the services are:

• provide details of the qualifications/experience;

The ministry office name has chosen not to compete the contemplated contract for the following reasons:

- 1. Provide rationale, including ability, availability, resources, etc., of the proposed contractor;
- 2. Provide rationale, including ability, availability, resources, etc., of the proposed contractor:

Contractors wishing to challenge this decision should FAX (e-mail is optional, but not both fax and e-mail) a letter of objection by no later than allow a minimum of 8 days insert time p.m. (local time) on insert month, day, year to:

Ministry of Enter Ministry: Natural Resource Operations or Forests, Mines and Lands

ministry office name

insert complete mailing and street address

Attention: insert ministry representative name FAX number: insert fax number

(optional: E-Mail address: insert address

The letter must outline the reasons for your objection and must demonstrate your ability to perform the contemplated work/service, availability, and resources. These items will be the criterion used to determine whether the work/service will be competed.

insert the manager of the responsibility centre's name and title

Pages 5 through 6 redacted for the following reasons:

Not Responsive

# THE FOLLOWING BLUE TEXT SECTION IS FOR YOUR CONVENIENCE ONLY IN COMPLETING THE BC BID ADVERTISEMENT AND DOES NOT FORM THE FINAL NOTICE OF INTENT TO DIRECT AWARD ADVERTISEMENT

- This notice is published on BC Bid and optionally in your local print media for service/works contracts valued at over \$50,000 that do not meet one of the allowable direct award exemptions outlined in Chapter 7.3.3.
- To **print** the BC Bid advertising checklist, enter the page range **p1s1-p1s1** respectively in the page range box.
- Once the final document has been completed, **delete** the checklist to prevent proponents from viewing information intended for internal use only.

## **BC BID INPUT INFORMATION** Allow a minimum of 8 days advertising on BC Bid 1. **Document Number** (Contract number): 2. Postpone Publish Date and Time (used to post-date the ad): 3. Closing Date & Time (local) (forms the heading on the "search results"): 4. Establish the BC Bid Commodity Code, provide details on the type of service to be performed (i.e., Stand Management – Arborist Services): 5. Summary Details (the advertisement in the next section will form the Summary Details for BC Bid) OPTIONAL ADVERTISING - policy requires these ads are made through the Public Affairs Bureau (refer to Chapter 11 of the Contract Management Manual) ■ Local Newspapers ■ Other **ADVERTISING DATES:** ■ Advertise once only on (date); or ■ Advertise between (dates inclusive); or Advertise on

FS1282 Rev. November 2010

Ensure adequate time between last advertising date and closing date,

Pages 8 through 10 redacted for the following reasons:
Not responsive

From:

Chris Perrin [cperrin@limnotek.com]

Sent:

Thursday, September 12, 2013 1:05 PM

To: Cc: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX 'Zettler, Shawn (RTA)'

Subject:

RE: LNG sampling arrangements in October

Thanks lan

Chris

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX [mailto:Ian.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca]

**Sent:** September-12-13 12:56 PM

To: Chris Perrin

Cc: 'Zettler, Shawn (RTA)'

Subject: RE: LNG sampling arrangements in October

Chris: I have approval for direct award for soils and water work to Limnotek, and am beginning contract sched A today. Will have a draft for you ASAP. Will follow that with RFP for the larger effort. Stay tuned...

Shawn: I will keep you informed on this as we proceed, given RTA will be using the same contractor during the same period. Thanks for all you have done to get this in motion from your end!

lan D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Chris Perrin [mailto:cperrin@limnotek.com]
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2013 10:42 AM

To: 'Shawn Zettler'

**Cc:** Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX; Dave Marmorek **Subject:** LNG sampling arrangements in October

Hi Shawn;

#### Soils sampling

I have arrangements worked out to do the soils sampling in October as requested by Ian Sharpe. Ian will contact Julian Aherne and Shaun Watmough at Trent U to request the location of soil pit sites. Shaun and Julian will use their best professional judgement on the selection of 20-25 soil pit sites based on expectation of a different pollutant plume under LNG influence compared to just under RTA influence. Shaun and Julian will contact the folks at Cambria Gordon to make the final selection based on logistics constraints. Cambria Gordon are good to go to do the soils sampling in October. Cambria Gordon will subcontract to Limnotek to do the work. Cambria Gordon will provide a cost estimate to Limnotek following final selection of sampling sites with Julian and Shaun.

#### Lake water sampling

Limnotek will sample 15 lakes for MOE that are additional to the 12 we will sample for RTA in the week of October 7. Folks at MOE are making the lake selections based on best professional judgement and expectation of a different

From:

LaJeunesse, Annette M CSNR:EX

Sent:

Monday, September 16, 2013 11:27 AM

To:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Cc:

Standen, Jim ENV:EX; Ho, Raymond CSNR:EX

Subject:

RE: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract

Attachments:

Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract.docx

GS14EPD-088

LIMNOTEK RESEARCH &

KITIMAT AIRSHED IMPACT ASSESSMENT STUDY WATER &

\$99,000

19-Sep-

lar

31-Dec-13

DEVELOPMENT INC.

SOILS SAMPLING PROJECT

13

The above number is now issued for this \$99,000 contract with Limnotek Research & Development Inc. Thanks Annette

#### Annette LaJeunesse

Recovery & Contract Clerk

Ministry of Forest, Land & Natural Resource Operations

CSNR: Client Services PO Box 9378 Stn Prov Govt Victoria BC V8W 9M1 3rd Floor- 2975 Jutland Rd. Victoria BC V8T 5J9

Phone: 387-9873 Fax: 356-9239

Email: Annette.LaJeunesse@gov.bc.ca

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent: Monday, September 16, 2013 11:12 AM

To: LaJeunesse, Annette M CSNR:EX

Cc: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX; Standen, Jim ENV:EX **Subject:** Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract

Annette: Here are parts A and B of the contract approval form I am working on for Deputy Minister approval. I hope that you can issue a contract number so that I can proceed with the approval process today.

This contract is one of 2 contracts that will be issued to complete a \$650K impact assessment study of the Kitimat airshed as it relates to new LNG terminals proposed for the area. I have verbal approval for this direct award of up to \$100K from Wes Shoemaker, Deputy Minister for MOE, through Jim Standen ADM of EPD MOE. The second contract will be issued through an RFP process, and will be for the remainder of the \$650K available. This second contract has also been verbally approved at the deputy level.

Since I have been instructed to get the 1st contract in force as soon as possible, I would appreciate any timely advice you may be able to give me that would help me get this done correctly. Thanks!

lan D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

## REQUEST TO CONTRACT FORM

#### **Instructions for Use**

Note: This form is an internal document to be used by the Ministries of Environment (MOE) and Agriculture and Lands (MAL).

The Request to Contract Form must be completed to initiate all contracts as well as to modify contracts that increase the dollar value of the contract or extend the contract into a new fiscal year. This form replaces the current MOE/MAL Request for Approval – Contract Services Form and the MOE Executive Contract Pre-Approval Form. It is intended to be completed in 3 phases of the contract process:

- Part A: Planning;
- Part B: Awarding;
- · Part C: Modifying.

As this is an internal form, email approvals are acceptable as long as this document is included in the email stream.

The goal of this form is to reduce the paperwork of those contracts that conform to policy and to highlight the most common policy errors which sometimes occur. A 'no' answer on any of the policy compliance questions may indicate an additional risk in proceeding and additional documentation may be required.

A quarterly compliance report will be completed by the Finance and Administration Branch and reported to the Executive.

Do not print out the "Instructions for Use" page or the "Footnotes" page for inclusion in the contract file.

#### Part A - Pre-Approval (Planning)

Part A provides the Expense Authority (EA) with the information required to make an informed decision whether or not to proceed with a contract. **EA approval must be obtained <u>before</u> the procurement process is initiated.** 

At this point, some divisions **MAY** also require Executive approval (ADM or Executive Director). At their discretion, Executive may require a pre-approval signature in Part A. The Executive member should advise their Client Services Branch (CSB) and branch directors of any pre approval requirements and related thresholds.

Part A also provides the coding data needed by administrative staff.

#### Part B - Contract Approval (Award)

Part B is to be completed after the selection of the vendor but **before** the vendor signs the contract. If the awarded contract matches the figures and details provided in Part A, the EA's signature is <u>not</u> required in Part B as the EA will sign the contract. If the contract does not match the figures and details provided in Part A, the EA must sign Part B to approve any increase in the dollar value of the contract, and/or when a change in the procurement process reduces the number of vendors given the opportunity to bid.

Example of Change in the Procurement Process:

If the original Procurement Process chosen in Part A was the Open Competitive Process (100), then later changed to a Direct Award (200-207), the EA must approve the new Procurement Process as it reduces the number of potential vendors. However, if the original Procurement Process chosen in Part 2 was a Direct Award, then later changed to an Open Competitive Process allowing more vendors to participate, no additional approval is required from the EA.

#### Part C - Modifications

Part C must be completed to modify an existing contract when the modification will increase the dollar value of the contract or when it will extend the contract into another fiscal year. As these situations have budgetary implications, the EA's signature is required to verify that policy compliance questions have been considered. If a modification does not have any budgetary implications, then Part C does not need to be completed. If a Division's Executive requires pre-approval signature in Part A, then their signature is required in Part C.

# REQUEST TO CONTRACT

☐ AGRICULTURE AND LANDS☐ ENVIRONMENT

				PAR	I A	<b>-</b> FL	ANNING (See Instruction	115)					
DIV	ISION	I/BRANCH	EPD ROB				LOCATION/ REGION: S	keen	a Smi	thers			
PRO	OJEC	T TITLE: Kit	imat Airshed I	mpac	t Ass	essm	ent Study Water and Soils Sar	nplin	g Proj	ject			
	NTRA NAGE	CT ER/MONITOR	R NAME:	lan s	Sharp	e	Р	HON	E:	250-84	7-725	1	
LO			ES/PURPOSE	obta 2013 to co	aining 3. Thi omple	field s s cont ete the	the approved Kitimat Airshed work derived soils and water of ract will ensure that the neces e rest of the impact assessment we project completion of late of	qualit ssary nt pro	ty info inforr oject a	rmation befo nation is coll lifter freeze-u	re fre lected	eze- lin tiı	up in me
RES		N EXISTING CES NOT F		sam prod	pling cess,	prior and a	MOE staff contingent is not all to freeze-up 2013. In addition nalyze the samples to gain the project.	, the	Provi	nce lacks the	expe	rtise	to
PRO		BE THE IMPA AM DELIVER 'ED					nat Airshed Impact Assessme If the allotted time for complet		udy w	ould be unac	cepta	ibly	
			СО	RE P	OLIC	Y CON	IPLIANCE CHECKLIST				Υ	N	n/a
1.		Corporate Sup PM 6.3.2.c.2)	ply Arrangement	(CSA)	) is ava	ailable,	are the goods or services being pur	chase	ed throu	igh the CSA?		х	
2.			cts over \$100,000 contract file. ( <u>CP</u>			t Benef	it Justification (CBJ) been prepared	? If ye	es, attac	ch the CBJ			х
3.	mont	ths from previo	ous expiry date),	the ne	w con	tract m	nat has been used for similar work i ust be approved by an expense aut xpense authority approved the conti	hority <sup>.</sup>	with au	thority for the			х
4.	Can	you confirm th	is contract does	not co	nstitut	e an <u>er</u>	nployer/employee relationship? (Cl	PPM 6	5.3.1. <u>7</u> )		Х		
				BES	ST PF	RACTIO	CES CHECKLIST						
1.	Has	a <u>Risk Assess</u>	<u>sment</u> been prepa	ared to	deter	mine th	e possible need for additional insur	ance r	require	ments?			х
			PROCUREI	MENT	PRO	CESS -	- SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE	DES	CRIPT	ION			
	100	OPEN COMP	ETITIVE PROCES	S		204	DIRECT AWARD – CONFIDENTIALITY		400	SELECTED VE PRE-QUALIFIC			
	200	DIRECT AWA	ARD – PUBLIC G.			205	DIRECT AWARD – NOTICE OF INTENT		401	COMPETITION VENDORS ON QUALIFICATION	A PRE	-	
х	201	DIRECT AWA	ARD – SOLE SOUF	RCE		206	DIRECT AWARD – NO JUSTIFICATION		500	PURCHASE FI CORPORATE	ROM A SUPPL		
	202	DIRECT AWA	ARD – EMERGENO	CY		207	DIRECT AWARD – UNDER \$25,000		600	OTHER PURC		PROC	ESS
	203	DIRECT AWA ORDER	ARD – SECURITY,			300	DIRECT INVITATION TO SELECTED VENDORS		601	OTHER – CON AGREEMENTS		IG	
Add Pho	ress: 4 ne:(60	Award, Contra 4035 W 14th A 14) 222-3546	ve, Vancouver, I	3C V6I	R 2X3		earch & Development Inc See you						
proj	ect to	succeed, the	e field work cor	npone	ent mu	ıst occ	oject approved by LNG Board Se ur before freezeup – contractor						
							ntractor could mobilize in time. above, has your program used t	hese	service	es in the			
pas	t year		JOICOLCU UNUEI	<u> 201</u> ,	<u> </u>	. <u>201</u> (	abovo, nao your program ascu t	1030	JCI VICE	Y		N	Х
If ye		- 4 4	and data of the	o pro-	do. 10	nont	at and the contract value:						_
•				•			ct and the contract value: bid or direct awarded:			MOE-2013-0 Emails	00311		
	1 10	asc state II II	io opportunity (	was U	ompe	auvery	bid of difect awarded.			Page 14			

Will a Direct Award purchase obligate government to this vendor for future purchases or services? (e.g. licensing, maintenance, etc.)  Provide details::	Υ	N	х	N/A	
Flovide details					

## **PART A CONTINUED - PLANNING** (See Instructions)

ANTICIPATED TERM OF AGREEMENT: FROM DATE: September 19, 2013 TO DATE: December 31, 2013  RECOVERABLE? YES										
ANTICIPAT	ED TERM OF AGRE	EMENT:	FROM DAT	E: Septe	emk	per 19, 2013	TO D	ATE: Dece	ember 31, 2013	
RECOVERA	ABLE? YES	NO x		<u> </u>					<u> </u>	
	•	1E):								
	·									
ESTIMATEI VALUE OF	D \$70,000 - \$99	),000		OVER S APPRO HAS A	\$25 OVE LE	50,000 OR WHEN MO ED TEMPLATES. GAL REVIEW BEEN		ATIONS AR	RE MADE TO THE	
CLIENT	RESPONSIBILITY	SERVICI	E LINE	STOB			PRO	JECT	AMOUNT	
048         2940A         30592         6001         2900000         \$99.000           CONTRACT CATEGORY - SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION           GMA         PRA         BSA           HR/LR         PM         X										
VALUE OF CONTRACT:										
		I								
	CONT	RACT CA	TEGORY - S	SEE FOO	ОТІ	NOTES FOR CODE I	DESCI	RIPTION		
☐ GMA			☐ PR/	A				BSA		
☐ HR/LI	R		□ РМ	OVER \$250,000 OR WHEN MODIFICATIONS ARE MADE TO THE APPROVED TEMPLATES.  HAS A LEGAL REVIEW BEEN OBTAINED?  FROM PROJECT AMOUNT  6001 2900000 \$99.000  ORY - SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION  PRA BSA  PM X OP  COM OTH  NLIST - SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION  SOURCE EXCLUDED - SECURITY, ORDER, ETC  AIT 600 EXCLUDED - PRODUCT COMPATIBILITY/EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS  700 EXCLUDED - PROCUREMENT OF PROTOTYPE  800 EXCLUDED - REGIONAL /ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  Reduce the number of vendors given the opportunity to bid from that indicated in an an an attachment to the email from the EA.						
☐ IT			☐ CO	М				OTH		
	AIT/TILM	IA EXCLU	ISION LIST -	- SEE F	<b>-0</b> 0	OTNOTES FOR COD	E DES	CRIPTION	N	
□ 100					500			-	R, ETC	
x 200	THRESHOLD			6	600	1			HTS	
□ 300			ED	7	700					
□ 400	EXCLUDED – EMER	RGENCY		8	800	1	EGION	AL /ECONO	OMIC	
'Procurement be by email	nt Process' section abo as long as this docum	ove, then t ent is inclu	he EA must a ided as an att	approve th	he	change in Part B befor	e awaı			
EXPENSE A	AUTHORITY APPROV	/Al email	approval acce	entable	] [	EXECUTIVE APPROV	'AL (if i	r <b>eauired)</b> er	mail approval accer	table
		. LE SITION		Charle			(111	_ <b></b>	app. 3 rai a300p	
SIGNATURE			DATE			SIGNATURE			DATE	
SIGNATURE			PAIL			O.OHATORE			DAIL	
PRINT NAME						PRINT NAME				

## PART B – AWARD

## (Complete for new contracts only- See Instructions)

CON	TRACTOR (FULL LEGAL N	IAME):	: Li	imnotek Research & De	evelopment Inc S	ee yo	our review.			
	TRACTOR'S 'DOING BUSII			•	ABLE):					
ADDF	RESS: 4035 W 14th Ave, Vanc	ouver, B	3C \	V6R 2X3						
					CONTRACT NUM	BER	:			
	<b>IE NUMBER:</b> :(604) 222-3546									
EMAI	L ADDRESS: cperrin@limnoto	ek.com				WC	CB NUMBER:			
		CONF	FIR	MATION OF CONTRA	CT DETAILS FROI	/I P	ART A			
Has th	ere been any changes to the value	or <u>term</u> o	of th	ne contract from the 'Contr	ract Details' section in	Part	A? <b>Y</b>		N	Х
If yes,	nen the Qualified Receiver/Contract Expense Authority and Executive a ktending into an additional fiscal yea	pproval (if		,		ie do	llar value and an end			
TERM	OF AGREEMENT:	From [	Dat	te: September 18, 201	3	То [	Date: December 31, 2013			
Total	Value: \$									
		CORE	E P	OLICY COMPLIANCE	CHECKLIST					
	(fe			tion contracts click n/a w				Υ	N	N/A
1.	For <u>service</u> contracts with an aggre(CPPM 6.3.2.c.4)	egate valı	lue	over \$75,000, inclusive of	all potential extension	s, did	d you advertise on <u>BC Bid</u> ?		х	
2.	For <u>service</u> contracts between \$25 and profile of the business opportu <u>6.3.2.c.5</u> ) Documentation of the pr	unity? Opp	port	tunities must be posted or	n BC Bid or at least the	appro	opriate to the value, complexity uotes must be obtained. (CPPM			х
3.	For all contracts under \$25,000, d	id you cor	mpe	ete to the extent reasonab	le and cost-effective?	Docu	umentation is required in the file.			х
4.	If a pre-qualification list of contract (for contracts over \$75,000, the op						rocess as described in the list			Х
5.	If the General Services Agreemen Management approval? <b>Docume</b>									X
6.	Does <b>Schedule A</b> clearly identify	specific a	and i	measurable contract delive	erables? (CPPM 6.3.6	<u>.c</u> )		X		
7.	Does <b>Schedule A</b> clearly identify of reporting requirements)? (CPPN	the proces <u>// 6.3.6.c</u> )	ess t	the ministry will use to mor	nitor the contractor's p	erfor	mance (e.g. frequency & format	Х		
8.	If sub-contractors will be providing	any serv	vices	s, are they identified in Sc	chedule C?			Х		
9.	Has a Certificate of Insurance bee	n request	ted	confirming all applicable in	nsurance as required	n Sc	chedule D? ( <u>CPPM 6.3.3.e.11</u> )	Х		
10.	Will the contract be signed by <b>bot</b> l	h parties l	bef	ore the start date of the co	ontract (the contractor	must	t sign first)? ( <u>CPPM 6.3.3.e.2</u> )	Х		
11.	Is the contract written in the <b>legal</b> an organization)? (CPPM 6.3.3.e.	name of t	the	contractor (do not write th	ne contract in the name	of a	n individual if the contract is with	х		
			BE	ST PRACTICES CHEC	CKLIST					
1.	If a contractor is ineligible for WCE	3 (includin	ng F	Personal Optional Protection	on), has the EA given	appro	oval to proceed?			Х
2.	If the contract crosses fiscal years have confirmed appropriation?	, does <b>Sc</b>	che	dule A include language t	that work must not pro	ceed	in the new fiscal year until you			Х
3.	Has a WorkSafe BC (WCB) cleara	nce letter	r be	een obtained for inclusion i	in the contract file?			Х		
4.	For contracts including travel expenses Schedule B?	enses, hav	ive y	you attached the per diem	rates as an appendix	and	referenced the appendix in	Х		
ΟΠΑΙ	IFIED RECIEVER/		Г	EXPENSE AUTHORITY	Y (if required) email	1	EXECUTIVE APPROVAL (if	ednire	ed) er	nail
	RACT MONITOR			approval acceptable	. (II roquirou) email		approval acceptable	Squire	a, ci	. IGII

MOE-2013-00311 Emails Page 17

Signatu	ure Date NAME	Signature Date PRINT NAME		Signature PRINT NAME		Date	
(Co		PART C - MODIFICATION of the contract only if there is an interest of the contract on the contract on the contract on the contract of the cont	creas	e to the dollar value o	r if the	contra	ict is
			CON	ITRACT NUMBER:			
			CON	TRACT NUMBER:			
			M	ODIFICATION #:			
RE	ASON FOR MODIFICATION:						
OR	IGINAL CONTRACT TOTAL	\$					
PR	EVIOUS CONTRACT TOTAL:	\$					
МО	DIFICATION AMOUNT:	\$					
NE	W CONTRACT TOTAL:	\$					
PR	EVIOUS CONTRACT TERM:	From:	Т	o:			
NE	W CONTRACT TERM:	From:	Т	o:			
	CORE POLICY C	OMPLIANCE - MODIFICATIONS (See in	struc	tions)	Υ	N	N/A
1.	Is the existing contract still open?	Contracts cannot be modified after they have e	xpired.	. <u>CPPM 6.3.2.a.11</u>			
2.	Does the modification format comp 6.3.3.e.9?	ply with the Modification Agreement and the cla	uses a	as stated in <u>CPPM</u>			
		BEST PRACTICES CHECKLI	ST				
3.		oe added to the original amount of the contract opropriate expense authority approved the Moo					
4.		the terms of the contract solicitation process (F mentation to explain why the opportunity has no					
5.	If this contract has been modified opportunity has not been offered to	more than twice, have you included documenta o other vendors?	ition to	explain why the			

Signature

PRINT NAME

EXPENSE AUTHORITY APPROVAL email approval acceptable

Signature

PRINT NAME

Date

Date

EXECUTIVE APPROVAL (if required) email approval acceptable

#### FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTIONS

#### **Procurement Process DFF - List of Values**

#### Code Description

- **Open competitive process**: An open competitive process (e.g., Invitation to Quote, Request for Proposal, Joint Solution Procurement, Invitation to Tender, or other) has been utilized, normally by advertising the opportunity on BC Bid. Core policy requires an open competitive process for amounts over \$75,000.
- 200 Direct Award Public sector organization: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the contract is with another government organization.
- Direct Award Sole source: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded wi hout competitive process where the ministry can strictly prove that only one contractor is qualified to provide the goods, services or construction or is capable of engaging in a disposal opportunity.
- 202 Direct Award Emergency: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and direc ly awarded without competitive process where an unforeseeable emergency exists and the goods, services or construction could not be obtained in ime by means of a competitive process.
- 203 Direct Award Security, order, etc.: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where a competitive process would interfere with a ministry's ability to maintain security or order or to protect human, animal or plant life or health.
- **Direct Award Confidentiality**: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the acquisition is of a confidential or privileged nature and disclosure through an open bidding process could reasonably be expected to compromise government confidentiality, cause economic disruption or be contrary to the public interest.
- **Direct Award Notice of Intent**: A Notice of Intent must be posted on BC Bid when a contract for goods valued at more than \$10,000, or a contract for services or construction valued at more than \$50,000, is to be directly awarded on the basis that there is only one vendor that can provide the services required
- Direct Award No justification: Where a direct award has been made which is not justified under one of the exceptional conditions specified in the Core Policy Manual section 6.3.3 a (1), or a Notice of Intent has not been issued, or it is provided for under another policy.
- **Direct Award Under \$25,000 –** Contracts for acquisitions may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the value is less than \$25,000 for services and construction or less than \$10,000 for goods, and it is not reasonable or cost effective to openly compete the acquisition.
- 300 Direct Invitation to selected vendors: A competitive solicitation which is issued to a limited list of vendors and not advertised on BC Bid.
- 400 Selected vendor from pre-qualification list: A contract that is issued to a vendor on a pre-qualification list without undertaking a competitive process.
- 401 Competition among vendors on a pre-qualification list: A competitive solicitation which is issued to a limited list of vendors selected from a pre-qualification list.
- **Purchase from a Corporate Supply Arrangement**: A purchase from a pre-established corporate supply arrangement such as a MSO, SO, the Queen's Printer or other as identified in <a href="CPPM 6.3.2 a (1)">CPPM 6.3.2 a (1)</a>.
- **Other Purchase Process**: Other recognized procurement process, such as the purchase card.
- 601 Other Continuing Agreements: For second and subsequent years of multi-year agreements.
- 602 Other Transfer Under Agreement: For grants (bo h Conditional and Unconditional), Transfers and Entitlements.

#### Agreement on Internal Trade DFF - List of Values

#### Code Description

- **Purchase subject to AIT**: The purchase is over the AIT thresholds (\$25K for goods and \$100K for services and construction) and is not excluded or exempted under any other provision of the AIT or other category below.
- 200 Purchase below applicable AIT threshold: The purchase is under the AIT thresholds (\$25K for goods and \$100K for services and construction).
- **Purchase of an exempted commodity/service**: The purchase is for goods, services or construction that is exempted from coverage of the AIT by virtue of its specific reference in Chapter 5 of the agreement (e.g., health and social services).
- **Excluded Emergency**: A purchase where an unforeseeable situation of urgency exists and the goods, services or construction cannot be obtained in time by means of an open procurement.
- **Excluded Security, order, etc.**: A purchase where compliance with the open tendering provisions set out in Chapter 5 of the AIT would interfere with the Province's ability to maintain security or order or to protect human, animal or plant life or health.
- **Excluded Product compatibility/exclusive rights:** A purchase which must: ensure compatibility with existing products; recognize exclusive rights, such as exclusive licenses, copyright and patent rights; or maintain specialized products that must be maintained by the manufacturer or its representative.
- **Excluded Procurement of prototype**: The procurement of a prototype or a first good or service to be developed in the course of and for a particular contract for research, experiment, study or original development, but not for any subsequent purchases.
- **Excluded Regional/Economic development**: A purchase which, under exceptional circumstances, may be excluded by the Province from the application of Chapter 5 of the AIT for regional and economic development purposes.

#### Code Descriptions for STOB 60, 61, and 63

The following definitions are to be used to classify contracts in STOBs 60, 61, and 63 which fall into the categories listed. If the contract does not fit into one of these broad categories, it should be excluded from the analysis. If the contract falls into more than 1 category, choose the predominant category.

Recoverable contracts should be identified as such and will be excluded from the information submitted to central agencies if submission is required.

GMA (General Management Advice) - Contracts providing information for, or advice on, the planning and/or management of programs.

HR/LR (Human Resources & LR) - Contracts providing Human Resources services or human resource related services such as coaching/facilitation and organizational design.

IT (IT Consulting) – Consulting services related to information technology. This would include contracts consulting on systems development or management of systems. It would not include the work done to develop the system, writing code, data entry etc.

**PRA** (Policy, Research and Analysis) – Contracts providing planning services that contribute to or recommend policy, or consultation on policy issues; contracts that provide research and analysis to advise in program management.

PM (Project Management) - Contracts where an external project manager is hired to run a project or facilitate activities.

COM (Communications) - Contracts proving professional services related to the planning writing, prepara ion or distribution of communications

**BSA** (Business Support & Administrative) – Contracts where administrative support is supplied such as administrative service, filing, cataloguing, records administration, etc. Also includes Secretariat support services.

**OP** (Operational) – Contracts where non consulting type work is being performed that is performing a service that does not fit into one of the categories above. Examples include data entry, building fences, maintenance activities, writing and delivery of training program

OTH (Other) - Contracts which do not fall into any of the above categories.

From:

Standen, Jim ENV:EX

Sent:

Thursday, September 19, 2013 1:21 PM

To:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Cc:

McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Manahan, Suzanne MNGD:EX; Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX; Parmar,

Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Subject:

Re: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval form for signatures

lan,

Sorry but I think that it needs rework of the direct award rationale. Cabinet elements not (as I understand it) relevant to direct award. Need focus on:

- 1) time constraints (well presented in current version)
- 2) opportunity to piggyback on RTA work as means to reduce cost and increase timeliness
- 3) loss of field season if any further time delays
- 4) specialized expertise: limited (if any other) professionals with the relevant skills a and knowledge

Thanks, Jim

On 2013-09-19, at 12:47 PM, "Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX" < <a href="mailto:lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca">lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca</a> wrote:

Jim: Here is the final draft of the Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval form for your signature. I have been advised by Suzanne Manahan that the next signature will be that of Ranbir Parmar, Director and CFO of CSNR, and that he is expecting the form to cross his desk. Please keep me informed as to progress on the two approval.

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

< Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final.docx>

From:

Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Sent:

Monday, September 23, 2013 9:23 AM

To:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Cc:

Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan,

Suzanne MNGD:EX; Smith, Shelley CSNR:EX; Smith, Pam M CSNR:EX

Subject:

RE: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

lan, I will ask Shelley here to send the new signed form to you shortly. Thanks.

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent: Monday, September 23, 2013 9:10 AM

To: Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Cc: Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan, Suzanne MNGD:EX

**Subject:** RE: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

Thanks Ranbir. My hope is that I can have the signed approval form in hand this AM, so that a contract can be signed this afternoon. Is this do-able for you?

Jim: Can you please send a new email with your approval for the \$160K this AM? Thanks.

lan D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Sent: Monday, September 23, 2013 9:08 AM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Cc: Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan, Suzanne MNGD:EX; Sharpe,

Ian D ENV:EX

Subject: Re: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

Ok thanks

Sent from my iPhone

On 2013-09-21, at 2:51 PM, "Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX" < <a href="mailto:lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca">lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca</a> wrote:

Ranbir and Jim: I have finalized negotiations with the contractor, and need to change the contract price from \$130K to \$160K. This is due to three factors:

- Initial under-estimate of the number of lakes necessary to sample to have sufficient statistical power to calculate critical loads for the acidification assessment part of the overall project
- Initial under-estimate of laboratory analysis of soil and water samples
- Need for additional helicopter time to sample the extra lakes.

The additional \$30K above the original estimated amount would be split approximately equally between the three types of expenditures above.

The additional cost for this field work component will not affect the completion of the overall project within the total budget currently allotted.

Should this not meet with your approval, I would need to eliminate the soils part of the field work, and focus on the surface water component. This would likely leave some key impact assessment questions related to soils acidification and forest health un-answered in the overall project.

I have taken the liberty of revising the contract approval form to reflect the above, and provide it as an attachment for your consideration and approval.

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Sent: Friday, September 20, 2013 8:44 AM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Cc: Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan, Suzanne

MNGD:EX

Subject: RE: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

Ok thanks Ian and I will sign off on this from my end this morning.

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent: Friday, September 20, 2013 7:05 AM

To: Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Cc: Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan, Suzanne

MNGD:EX; Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Subject: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

Ranbir: Please see Jim Standen's email approval for the proposed Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract below. According to Suzanne Manahan, you have said that you would be the final approving authority for this contract. Please review the approval form attached. If you need further information or edits prior to your approval, please email or phone my cell today. I am on the road for the 1<sup>st</sup> ½ of the day, but reachable after that. Thank you for your involvement in this, and for Barb and Dan's advice along the way.

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Standen, Jim ENV:EX

Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2013 5:37 PM

**To:** Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX **Cc:** Shoemaker, Wes ENV:EX

Subject: Re: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

lan,

Given the advice you have received and the reworking of the rationale I am fine with it. Approved.

Jim

On 2013-09-19, at 5:08 PM, "Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX" < <a href="mailto:lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca">lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca</a> wrote:

Jim: I have taken Barb Burrage's advice, who has spoken to Ranbir Parmar regarding the rationale for direct award of the contract. Please see the description of the rationale in the form attached, and then call me on cell 250-877-9237 lan

<Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2.docx>
<Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final3.docx>

From:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent:

Wednesday, September 25, 2013 8:08 AM

To:

Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan,

Suzanne MNGD:EX; Smith, Shelley CSNR:EX; Smith, Pam M CSNR:EX

Cc:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Subject:

FW: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

All: Here is the email I referred to in last night's email describing Ranbir's intentions on contract approval.

lan D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Sent: Monday, September 23, 2013 9:23 AM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Cc: Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan, Suzanne MNGD:EX; Smith,

Shellev CSNR:EX: Smith, Pam M CSNR:EX

**Subject:** RE: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

lan, I will ask Shelley here to send the new signed form to you shortly. Thanks.

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent: Monday, September 23, 2013 9:10 AM

To: Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Cc: Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan, Suzanne MNGD:EX

**Subject:** RE: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final?

Thanks Ranbir. My hope is that I can have the signed approval form in hand this AM, so that a contract can be signed this afternoon. Is this do-able for you?

Jim: Can you please send a new email with your approval for the \$160K this AM? Thanks.

lan D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Parmar, Ranbir S CSNR:EX

Sent: Monday, September 23, 2013 9:08 AM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Cc: Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Burrage, Barbara CSNR:EX; Manahan, Suzanne MNGD:EX; Sharpe,

Ian D ENV:EX

**Subject:** Re: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

the day, but reachable after that. Thank you for your involvement in this, and for Barb and Dan's advice along the way.

lan D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Standen, Jim ENV:EX

Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2013 5:37 PM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX Cc: Shoemaker, Wes ENV:EX

Subject: Re: Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2

lan,

Given the advice you have received and the reworking of the rationale I am fine with it. Approved.

Jim

On 2013-09-19, at 5:08 PM, "Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX" < <a href="mailto:lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca">lan.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca</a> wrote:

Jim: I have taken Barb Burrage's advice, who has spoken to Ranbir Parmar regarding the rationale for direct award of the contract. Please see the description of the rationale in the form attached, and then call me on cell 250-877-9237 lan

< Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final2.docx>

<Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract approval final3.docx>

From:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent:

Tuesday, September 17, 2013 7:49 AM

To:

Standen, Jim ENV:EX; McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX

Cc:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX; Laine, Dan J CSNR:EX

Subject: Attachments: Kitimat Airshed Impact Assessment - direct award soils and water sampling contract Kitimat Airshed soils water sampling contract.docx

Jennifer and Jim: I have been advised by Dan Laine, Contract Procurement Specialist, that I should provide you with contract approval information beyond what is in the approval form:

- We have discussed and you arte aware of the potential administrative risks of a direct award contract with a ceiling price of \$99K. Dan, or one of his counterparts can further advise you on this if necessary.
- The circumstances that have led to this approach are as follows:
  - There is no opportunity to conduct a competitive process for this work. Given that:
    - The overall \$650K Kitimat airshed impact assessment project approval was just now obtained at the NG Board level (Sept 13)
    - The \$100K field work component to be contracted now must be done by mid October (prior to snowfall), so we cannot afford the time for the 3-4 week bidding process
    - The field work is necessary to happen this fall, so that the rest of the project can be completed on time (January)
    - The chosen qualified contractor is already mobilizing for similar work for another client in the Kitimat area, and will start preparations this week, with field work to commence Oct 4 at the latest.
  - With the field work completed this fall, we will start a competitive bidding process for the remaining \$550K component of the overall study. This will give any company who may wish to submit a proposal the opportunity and time to do so.

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent: Monday, September 16, 2013 12:25 PM

To: Fairholm, Mary ENV:EX

Cc: McGuire, Jennifer ENV:EX; Gilmour, Lori ENV:EX; Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX **Subject:** Kitimat Airshed Impact Assessment - soils and water sampling contract

Mary: Please expedite this contract approval to get Jennifer's signature, then send it up the line to Jim S. Lori will be looking for it so that she can make sure Jim signs and then it has to go to Wes for final approval. Knowing this is UBCM week, this will need careful shepherding. Thanks!

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

## REQUEST TO CONTRACT FORM

#### **Instructions for Use**

Note: This form is an internal document to be used by the Ministries of Environment (MOE) and Agriculture and Lands (MAL).

The Request to Contract Form must be completed to initiate all contracts as well as to modify contracts that increase the dollar value of the contract or extend the contract into a new fiscal year. This form replaces the current MOE/MAL Request for Approval – Contract Services Form and the MOE Executive Contract Pre-Approval Form. It is intended to be completed in 3 phases of the contract process:

- Part A: Planning;
- Part B: Awarding;
- · Part C: Modifying.

As this is an internal form, email approvals are acceptable as long as this document is included in the email stream.

The goal of this form is to reduce the paperwork of those contracts that conform to policy and to highlight the most common policy errors which sometimes occur. A 'no' answer on any of the policy compliance questions may indicate an additional risk in proceeding and additional documentation may be required.

A quarterly compliance report will be completed by the Finance and Administration Branch and reported to the Executive.

Do not print out the "Instructions for Use" page or the "Footnotes" page for inclusion in the contract file.

#### Part A - Pre-Approval (Planning)

Part A provides the Expense Authority (EA) with the information required to make an informed decision whether or not to proceed with a contract. **EA approval must be obtained <u>before</u> the procurement process is initiated.** 

At this point, some divisions **MAY** also require Executive approval (ADM or Executive Director). At their discretion, Executive may require a pre-approval signature in Part A. The Executive member should advise their Client Services Branch (CSB) and branch directors of any pre approval requirements and related thresholds.

Part A also provides the coding data needed by administrative staff.

#### Part B - Contract Approval (Award)

Part B is to be completed after the selection of the vendor but **before** the vendor signs the contract. If the awarded contract matches the figures and details provided in Part A, the EA's signature is <u>not</u> required in Part B as the EA will sign the contract. If the contract does not match the figures and details provided in Part A, the EA must sign Part B to approve any increase in the dollar value of the contract, and/or when a change in the procurement process reduces the number of vendors given the opportunity to bid.

Example of Change in the Procurement Process:

If the original Procurement Process chosen in Part A was the Open Competitive Process (100), then later changed to a Direct Award (200-207), the EA must approve the new Procurement Process as it reduces the number of potential vendors. However, if the original Procurement Process chosen in Part 2 was a Direct Award, then later changed to an Open Competitive Process allowing more vendors to participate, no additional approval is required from the EA.

#### Part C - Modifications

Part C must be completed to modify an existing contract when the modification will increase the dollar value of the contract or when it will extend the contract into another fiscal year. As these situations have budgetary implications, the EA's signature is required to verify that policy compliance questions have been considered. If a modification does not have any budgetary implications, then Part C does not need to be completed. If a Division's Executive requires pre-approval signature in Part A, then their signature is required in Part C.

# **REQUEST TO CONTRACT**

☐ AGRICULTURE AND LANDS☐ ENVIRONMENT

	PART A – PLANNING (See Instructions)												
DIV	ISION	I/BRANCH	EPD ROB				LOCATION/ REGION: S	keen	a Smi	thers			
PR	OJEC	T TITLE: Kit	imat Airshed	Impac	t Ass	sessm	ent Study Water and Soils Sa	mplir	ng Pro	ject			
	NTRA NAGE	CT ER/MONITO	R NAME:	lan S	Sharp	е	F	PHON	IE:	250-84	7-725	1	
LO			ES/PURPOSE	obta 2013 to co	aining 3. Thi omple	field s con ete the	the approved Kitimat Airshed work derived soils and water tract will ensure that the nece e rest of the impact assessme we project completion of late	quali ssary nt pr	ty infor oject a	ormation befo mation is coll after freeze-u	re fre ected	eze- lin tiı	up in me
RES		N EXISTING CES NOT F		sam	pling cess,	prior and a	MOE staff contingent is not al to freeze-up 2013. In addition nalyze the samples to gain the project.	ı, the	Provi	nce lacks the	expe	rtise	to
PRO		BE THE IMPA AM DELIVER 'ED					mat Airshed Impact Assessme d the allotted time for complet		tudy w	ould be unac	cepta	ibly	
	1						IPLIANCE CHECKLIST				Υ	N	n/a
1.		Corporate Sup PM 6.3.2.c.2)	ply Arrangement	(CSA)	) is ava	ailable,	are the goods or services being pu	rchas	ed thro	ugh the CSA?		X	
2.	and i	include in the	contract file. ( <u>CP</u>	PM 6.3	<u>3.1.5</u> )		fit Justification (CBJ) been prepared						х
3.	mont	ths from previo	ous expiry date),	the ne	w con	tract m	hat has been used for similar work just be approved by an expense aut xpense authority approved the cont	thority	with a	uthority for the			х
4.							mployer/employee relationship? (C				Х		
				BES	ST PF	RACTI	CES CHECKLIST						
1.	Has	a <u>Risk Assess</u>	sment been prepa	ared to	deter	mine th	ne possible need for additional insur	ance	require	ments?			х
			PROCURE	MENT	PRO	CESS	- SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE	DES	CRIPT	TON			
	100	OPEN COMP	ETITIVE PROCES	SS		204	DIRECT AWARD – CONFIDENTIALITY		400	SELECTED VE PRE-QUALIFIC			
	200	DIRECT AWA	ARD – PUBLIC G.			205	DIRECT AWARD – NOTICE OF INTENT		401	COMPETITION VENDORS ON QUALIFICATION	A PRE	-	
х	201	DIRECT AWA	ARD – SOLE SOUP	RCE		206	DIRECT AWARD – NO JUSTIFICATION		500	PURCHASE FI CORPORATE ARRANGEMEI	ROM A SUPPL		
	202		ARD – EMERGENO			207	DIRECT AWARD – UNDER \$25,000		600	OTHER PURC	HASE I		ESS
	203	DIRECT AWA ORDER	ARD – SECURITY,			300	DIRECT INVITATION TO SELECTED VENDORS		601	OTHER – CON AGREEMENTS		lG	
Add Pho Rat proj for d	ress: 4 ne:(60 ional f ect to other o Direct t year es:	for Direct Aw succeed, the work in the s t Award was	ard to this cont e field work cor ame area. No selected under	ractor mpone other	R 2X3 ": Ove ent mu qualif <b>206</b> o	rall pro ust occ ied co or <b>207</b>	earch & Development Inc See you bject approved by LNG Board Secur before freezeup – contractor ntractor could mobilize in time. above, has your program used to the contract value:	ept 13 is mo	3. For sobilized	d already		N	X
•				•			bid or direct awarded:			MOE-2013-0 Emails Page 28	00311		

Will a Direct Award purchase obligate government to this vendor for future purchases or services? (e.g. licensing, maintenance, etc.)  Provide details::	Υ	N	х	N/A	
Flovide details					

# PART A CONTINUED – PLANNING (See Instructions)

## **CONTRACT DETAILS**

ANTICIPATED TERM OF AGREEMENT: FROM DATE: September 19, 2013 TO DATE: December 31, 2013  RECOVERABLE? YES NO X  RECOVERED FROM (FULL NAME): AMOUNT OF RECOVERY: S PERCENTAGE: %  ESTIMATED VALUE OF \$70,000 - \$99,000 VALUE OF \$70,000 - \$99,000 VALUE OF STO,000 - \$99,000 VALUE OF VALUE OF VALUE OF STO,000 - \$99,000 VALUE OF VALUE										
ANTICIPAT	ED TERM OF AGRE	EMENT:	FROM DAT	E: Septe	emk	per 19, 2013	TO DATE: De	ecember 31, 2013		
RECOVER	ABLE? YES	NO x								
AMOUNT C	F RECOVERY: \$	1E):								
VALUE OF	\$70,000 - \$99	,000		OVER S APPRO HAS A	\$25 OVE	50,000 OR WHEN MO ED TEMPLATES. GAL REVIEW BEEN	DIFICATIONS	ARE MADE TO TH	≣	
CLIENT	DECDONCIDII ITV	CEDVICI	F I INF		NE	D?				
_			E LINE							
CONTRACT CATEGORY - SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION  GMA PRA BSA HR/LR PM X OP IT OTH  AIT/TILMA EXCLUSION LIST - SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION  AIT/TILMA EXCLUSION LIST - SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION  DO PURCHASE SUBJECT TO AIT SOO EXCLUDED - SECURITY, ORDER, ETC  THRESHOLD  EXCLUDED - PRODUCT COMPATIBILITY/EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS										
	CONT	RACT CA	TEGORY - S	SEE FOO	ОТ	NOTES FOR CODE I	DESCRIPTION	I		
☐ GMA			☐ PR/	A			☐ BSA			
☐ HR/L	R		□ РМ	OVER \$250,000 OR WHEN MODIFICATIONS ARE MADE TO THE APPROVED TEMPLATES.  HAS A LEGAL REVIEW BEEN OBTAINED?  STOB PROJECT AMOUNT  6001 2900000 \$99.000  SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION  A BSA  X OP  M OTH  - SEE FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTION  500 EXCLUDED - SECURITY, ORDER, ETC  600 EXCLUDED - PRODUCT  COMPATIBILITY/EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS  700 EXCLUDED - REGIONAL /ECONOMIC  DEVELOPMENT  The number of vendors given the opportunity to bid from that indicated in approve the change in Part B before awarding the contract. EA approval can tachment to the email from the EA.						
☐ IT	□ IT □ COM □ OTH									
	AIT/TILM	IA EXCLU	ISION LIST -				E DESCRIPTI	ON		
□ 100				į	500		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ER, ETC		
x 200	THRESHOLD			6	600	1		RIGHTS		
□ 300			ED	7	700	EXCLUDED – PF	ROCUREMENT	OF PROTOTYPE		
□ 400	EXCLUDED – EMER	RGENCY		8	800	1		NOMIC		
				•						
'Procuremer be by email	nt Process' section aboas long as this docum	ove, then t ent is inclu	he EA must a ided as an att	pprove th	he	change in Part B befor	e awarding the			
EXPENSE	ALITHORITY APPROV	/Al email	annroval acce	entable	] [	EXECUTIVE APPROV	(A) (if required)	email approval acce	ntable	
LAI LINGE	TOTTONITI ALTRO	VAL CITIAII	approval acce	Splane		LALOO IIVL AI I NOV	(ii roquireu)	, smail approval acce	Plable	
SIGNATURE			DATE			SIGNATURE		DATE		
JIGHATURE			DAIE			CIGNATURE		DATE		
PRINT NAME	:					PRINT NAME				

## PART B – AWARD

## (Complete for new contracts only- See Instructions)

CON	TRACTOR (FULL LEGAL N	IAME):	: Limnotek Research &	Development Inc Se	ee yo	our review.			
	TRACTOR'S 'DOING BUSI		,	CABLE):					
ADDF	RESS: 4035 W 14th Ave, Vano	ouver, Bo	J V6R 2X3						
				CONTRACT NUME	BER	: GS14EPD-088			
PHON	<b>IE NUMBER:</b> :(604) 222-3546								
EMAI	L ADDRESS: cperrin@limnot	ek.com			WC	B NUMBER:			
		CONF	IRMATION OF CONT	RACT DETAILS FROM	/I P	ART A			
Has th	ere been any changes to the value	or <u>term</u> o	f the contract from the 'Co	ontract Details' section in	Part	A? Y		N	х
If yes,	nen the Qualified Receiver/Contrac Expense Authority and Executive a ktending into an additional fiscal ye	pproval (if	,		e do	llar value and an end			
TERM	OF AGREEMENT:	From D	Oate: September 18, 2	013	То [	Date: December 31, 2013			
Total	Value: \$			,					
		CORE	POLICY COMPLIANO	CE CHECKLIST					
	(f	or constr	uction contracts click n	a where appropriate)			Y	N	N/A
1.	For <u>service</u> contracts with an aggr ( <u>CPPM 6.3.2.c.4</u> )	egate valu	ue over \$75,000, inclusive	of all potential extension	s, did	d you advertise on BC Bid?		х	
2.	For <u>service</u> contracts between \$29 and profile of the business opport <u>6.3.2.c.5</u> ) Documentation of the p	unity? Opp	ortunities must be posted	I on BC Bid or at least thr	appro	opriate to the value, complexity uotes must be obtained. (CPPM			х
3.	For all contracts under \$25,000, d	lid you cor	npete to the extent reason	nable and cost-effective?	Docu	mentation is required in the file.			х
4.	If a pre-qualification list of contract (for contracts over \$75,000, the o					rocess as described in the list			Х
5.	If the General Services Agreement Management approval? <b>Docume</b>								X
6.	Does <b>Schedule A</b> clearly identify	specific ar	nd measurable contract d	eliverables? (CPPM 6.3.6	<u>.c</u> )		Χ		
7.	Does <b>Schedule A</b> clearly identify of reporting requirements)? (CPP	the proces	ss the ministry will use to	monitor the contractor's p	erfor	mance (e.g. frequency & format	Х		
8.	If sub-contractors will be providing	any servi	ces, are they identified in	Schedule C?			Х		
9.	Has a Certificate of Insurance bee	en request	ed confirming all applicab	le insurance as required i	n <b>Sc</b>	hedule D? ( <u>CPPM 6.3.3.e.11</u> )	Х		
10.	Will the contract be signed by bot	<b>h</b> parties b	pefore the start date of the	e contract (the contractor	must	sign first)? ( <u>CPPM 6.3.3.e.2</u> )	Х		
11.	Is the contract written in the <b>legal</b> an organization)? (CPPM 6.3.3.e.	name of t <u>3</u> )	he contractor (do not write	e the contract in the name	of a	n individual if the contract is with	Х		
		ı	BEST PRACTICES CH	IECKLIST					
1.	If a contractor is ineligible for WCI	3 (includin	g Personal Optional Prote	ection), has the EA given	appro	oval to proceed?			Х
2.	If the contract crosses fiscal years have confirmed appropriation?	s, does <b>Sc</b>	hedule A include languaç	ge that work must not prod	ceed	in the new fiscal year until you			Х
3.	Has a WorkSafe BC (WCB) clears	ance letter	been obtained for inclusi	on in the contract file?			Х		
4.	For contracts including travel expenses Schedule B?	enses, hav	e you attached the per di	em rates as an appendix	and	referenced the appendix in	Х		
QUAL	IFIED RECIEVER/		EXPENSE AUTHOR	ITY (if required) email		EXECUTIVE APPROVAL (if r	equire	ed) er	nail
	RACT MONITOR		approval acceptable	, ,		approval acceptable			

MOE-2013-00311 Emails Page 31

Signatu PRINT I		Signature PRINT NAME	Date	Signature PRINT NAME		Date	•
(Cd	omplete for modifications of a bei	PART C – MOD n existing contract only if th ng extended into another fis	nere is an increas	se to the dollar value of	or if the	contra	nct is
			COL	NTRACT NUMBER:			
				IODIFICATION #:			
				IODII IOATION#.			
RE	ASON FOR MODIFICATION:						
OR	IGINAL CONTRACT TOTAL	\$					
PRI	EVIOUS CONTRACT TOTAL:	\$					
МО	DIFICATION AMOUNT:	\$					
NE	W CONTRACT TOTAL:	\$					
		_		_			
PRI	EVIOUS CONTRACT TERM:	From:		Го:			
NE	W CONTRACT TERM:	From:	1	Го:			
	CORE POLICY C	OMPLIANCE - MODIFICATI	ONS (See instruc	ctions)	Υ	N	N/A
1.	Is the existing contract still open?	Contracts cannot be modified after	er they have expired	I. <u>CPPM 6.3.2.a.11</u>			
2.	Does the modification format com 6.3.3.e.9?	ply with the Modification Agreeme	ent and the clauses	as stated in <u>CPPM</u>			
		BEST PRACTICE	S CHECKLIST				
3.	The modification amount(s) must lapproval requirements. Has the approval requirements.						
4.	Is the modification compliant with original value? If no, include documents				. 🗆		
5.	If this contract has been modified opportunity has not been offered t		ed documentation to	explain why the			

Signature

PRINT NAME

EXPENSE AUTHORITY APPROVAL email approval acceptable

Signature

PRINT NAME

Date

EXECUTIVE APPROVAL (if required) email approval acceptable

#### FOOTNOTES FOR CODE DESCRIPTIONS

#### **Procurement Process DFF - List of Values**

#### Code Description

- **Open competitive process**: An open competitive process (e.g., Invitation to Quote, Request for Proposal, Joint Solution Procurement, Invitation to Tender, or other) has been utilized, normally by advertising the opportunity on BC Bid. Core policy requires an open competitive process for amounts over \$75,000.
- **Direct Award Public sector organization**: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the contract is with another government organization.
- Direct Award Sole source: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded wi hout competitive process where the ministry can strictly prove that only one contractor is qualified to provide the goods, services or construction or is capable of engaging in a disposal opportunity.
- 202 Direct Award Emergency: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and direc ly awarded without competitive process where an unforeseeable emergency exists and the goods, services or construction could not be obtained in ime by means of a competitive process.
- Direct Award Security, order, etc.: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where a competitive process would interfere with a ministry's ability to maintain security or order or to protect human, animal or plant life or health.
- **Direct Award Confidentiality**: Contracts for acquisitions (of goods, services, and construction) and disposals may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the acquisition is of a confidential or privileged nature and disclosure through an open bidding process could reasonably be expected to compromise government confidentiality, cause economic disruption or be contrary to the public interest.
- **Direct Award Notice of Intent**: A Notice of Intent must be posted on BC Bid when a contract for goods valued at more than \$10,000, or a contract for services or construction valued at more than \$50,000, is to be directly awarded on the basis that there is only one vendor that can provide the services required
- **Direct Award No justification**: Where a direct award has been made which is not justified under one of the exceptional conditions specified in the Core Policy Manual section 6.3.3 a (1), or a Notice of Intent has not been issued, or it is provided for under another policy.
- **Direct Award Under \$25,000 –** Contracts for acquisitions may be negotiated and directly awarded without competitive process where the value is less than \$25,000 for services and construction or less than \$10,000 for goods, and it is not reasonable or cost effective to openly compete the acquisition.
- 300 Direct Invitation to selected vendors: A competitive solicitation which is issued to a limited list of vendors and not advertised on BC Bid.
- 400 Selected vendor from pre-qualification list: A contract that is issued to a vendor on a pre-qualification list without undertaking a competitive process.
- 401 Competition among vendors on a pre-qualification list: A competitive solicitation which is issued to a limited list of vendors selected from a pre-qualification list.
- **Purchase from a Corporate Supply Arrangement**: A purchase from a pre-established corporate supply arrangement such as a MSO, SO, the Queen's Printer or other as identified in <a href="CPPM 6.3.2 a (1)">CPPM 6.3.2 a (1)</a>.
- **Other Purchase Process**: Other recognized procurement process, such as the purchase card.
- 601 Other Continuing Agreements: For second and subsequent years of multi-year agreements.
- 602 Other Transfer Under Agreement: For grants (bo h Conditional and Unconditional), Transfers and Entitlements.

#### Agreement on Internal Trade DFF - List of Values

#### Code Description

- **Purchase subject to AIT**: The purchase is over the AIT thresholds (\$25K for goods and \$100K for services and construction) and is not excluded or exempted under any other provision of the AIT or other category below.
- 200 Purchase below applicable AIT threshold: The purchase is under the AIT thresholds (\$25K for goods and \$100K for services and construction).
- **Purchase of an exempted commodity/service**: The purchase is for goods, services or construction that is exempted from coverage of the AIT by virtue of its specific reference in Chapter 5 of the agreement (e.g., health and social services).
- **Excluded Emergency**: A purchase where an unforeseeable situation of urgency exists and the goods, services or construction cannot be obtained in time by means of an open procurement.
- **Excluded Security, order, etc.**: A purchase where compliance with the open tendering provisions set out in Chapter 5 of the AIT would interfere with the Province's ability to maintain security or order or to protect human, animal or plant life or health.
- **Excluded Product compatibility/exclusive rights:** A purchase which must: ensure compatibility with existing products; recognize exclusive rights, such as exclusive licenses, copyright and patent rights; or maintain specialized products that must be maintained by the manufacturer or its representative.
- **Excluded Procurement of prototype**: The procurement of a prototype or a first good or service to be developed in the course of and for a particular contract for research, experiment, study or original development, but not for any subsequent purchases.
- **Excluded Regional/Economic development**: A purchase which, under exceptional circumstances, may be excluded by the Province from the application of Chapter 5 of the AIT for regional and economic development purposes.

#### Code Descriptions for STOB 60, 61, and 63

The following definitions are to be used to classify contracts in STOBs 60, 61, and 63 which fall into the categories listed. If the contract does not fit into one of these broad categories, it should be excluded from the analysis. If the contract falls into more than 1 category, choose the predominant category.

Recoverable contracts should be identified as such and will be excluded from the information submitted to central agencies if submission is required.

GMA (General Management Advice) - Contracts providing information for, or advice on, the planning and/or management of programs.

HR/LR (Human Resources & LR) - Contracts providing Human Resources services or human resource related services such as coaching/facilitation and organizational design.

IT (IT Consulting) – Consulting services related to information technology. This would include contracts consulting on systems development or management of systems. It would not include the work done to develop the system, writing code, data entry etc.

**PRA** (Policy, Research and Analysis) – Contracts providing planning services that contribute to or recommend policy, or consultation on policy issues; contracts that provide research and analysis to advise in program management.

PM (Project Management) - Contracts where an external project manager is hired to run a project or facilitate activities.

COM (Communications) - Contracts proving professional services related to the planning writing, prepara ion or distribution of communications

**BSA** (Business Support & Administrative) – Contracts where administrative support is supplied such as administrative service, filing, cataloguing, records administration, etc. Also includes Secretariat support services.

**OP** (Operational) – Contracts where non consulting type work is being performed that is performing a service that does not fit into one of the categories above. Examples include data entry, building fences, maintenance activities, writing and delivery of training program

OTH (Other) - Contracts which do not fall into any of the above categories.

MOE-2013-00311 Emails Page 33

PART C - MODIFICATIO  (Complete for modifications of an existing contract only if there is an incomplete for modifications of an existing contract only if there is an incomplete for modifications of an existing contract year - S  REASON FOR MODIFICATION:  ORIGINAL CONTRACT TOTAL  PREVIOUS CONTRACT TOTAL: \$	crease to the dollar value o	GS14E		
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TOTAL \$		GS14E	PD-0	88
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TOTAL \$	MODIFICATION #:			
ORIGINAL CONTRACT TOTAL \$				
PREVIOUS CONTRACT TOTAL: \$				
MODIFICATION AMOUNT: \$		:		
NEW CONTRACT TOTAL: \$				
PREVIOUS CONTRACT TERM: From:	То:	:		
NEW CONTRACT TERM: From:	То:			
CORE POLICY COMPLIANCE - MODIFICATIONS (See in	structions)	Y	N	N/A
1. Is the existing contract still open? Contracts cannot be modified after they have ex	pired. <u>CPPM 6.3.2.a.11</u>			
2. Does the modification format comply with the <u>Modification Agreement</u> and the class 6.3.3.e.9?	uses as stated in <u>CPPM</u>			
BEST PRACTICES CHECKLIS	T			
3. The modification amount(s) must be added to the original amount of the contract tapproval requirements. Has the appropriate expense authority approved the Modification amount (s) must be added to the original amount of the contract tapproval requirements.	o determine the new total for fication Agreement?			
Is the modification compliant with the terms of the contract solicitation process (RI original value? If no, include documentation to explain why the opportunity has no	FP etc.) or within 20% of			
5. If this contract has been modified more than twice, have you included documental opportunity has not been offered to other vendors?	ion to explain why the			
EXPENSE AUTHORITY APPROVAL email approval acceptable EXECUTIVE AF	PPROVAL (if required) email approv	al accept	able	
Signature Date Signature PRINT NAME	1/4 X S	EPI c	<u>25/,</u>	3

From:

Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Sent:

Wednesday, November 13, 2013 11:50 AM

To:

Hofweber, Jim E ENV:EX

Cc:

Gilmour, Lori ENV:EX; 'Chris Perrin'; Sharpe, lan D ENV:EX

Subject: Attachments: FW: Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soil&lakesamplingcontract Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soillakesamplingcontract edited by

Perrin.docx

Jim: please sign this modification agreement on behalf of Jim Standen. Please call if you need more information. Thanks.

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca

From: Chris Perrin [mailto:cperrin@limnotek.com] Sent: Wednesday, November 13, 2013 11:38 AM

To: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX

Subject: RE: Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soil&lakesamplingcontract

HI lan;

Thanks for preparing the modification agreement. Edits are attached for your approval. If you accept all changes in track changes, its good to go for signing at your end.

Chris

From: Sharpe, Ian D ENV:EX [mailto:Ian.Sharpe@gov.bc.ca]

Sent: November-13-13 11:00 AM

To: Chris Perrin

Subject: FW: Modification Agreement Nov 13 Kitimat Airshed Soil&lakesamplingcontract

Chris: Please add your WCB #, edit the change in the service part if I missed something. Then sign, scan and send to Jim Hofweber for his signature on behalf of the province. Please cc Lori Gilmour and me when you do this.

Jim: When you get the signed version of this, please sign, scan and send back to me. I will then have it processed with the contracts people.

Thanks both!

Ian D. Sharpe RPBio Regional Director MOE Environmental Protection Division Box 5000 Smithers BC V0J 2N0 250-847-7251 (o) 847-7591 (fax) 250-877-9237 (cell) ian.sharpe@.gov.bc.ca



## MODIFICATION AGREEMENT

Min Contract No.: GS14EPD-088

Resp: 2940A Serv. Line: 30592 Stob: 6002 Project: 2900000 WCB No.: 325447 Modification No.: 01

#### **BETWEEN**

HER MAJESTY THE QUEEN IN RIGHT OF THE PROVINCE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA, represented by

the Minister of Environment (the "Province") with the following specified address and fax number:

C/O Jim Standen, Assistant Deputy Minister

Ministry of Environment

Courier Address: 5th Floor - 2975 Jutland Road, Victoria, BC V8T 5J9 Mailing Address: PO Box 9339 Stn Prov Govt, Victoria, BC V8W 9M1

FAX NUMBER: 250-387-5669

(the "Province", "we", "us" or "our", as applicable)

AND

Limnotek Research & Development Inc.

4035 W 14<sup>th</sup> Ave Vancouver BC V6R 2X3 604-222-3546 (O) 604-222-3577 (fax) C/O Chris Perrin cperrin@limnotek.com

(the "Contractor", "you" or "your" as applicable)

#### **BACKGROUND**

- A. The parties entered into an agreement dated November 13, 2013, contract number GS14EPD-088, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 1 (the "Agreement"). (Note: or uniquely identify the contract in some other way)
- B. The parties have agreed to modify the Agreement.

#### AGREEMENT

The parties agree as follows:

Part of the field work portion of the contract has resulted in savings. Some of these savings will be allocated to include the addition of laboratory analyses of lake water samples obtained during the previous field work. The contract maximum will not be exceeded with this change in scope.

The change in scope includes the cost of adding total nitrogen (TN) and total phosphorus (TP) to all DCAS sites and to the RTA sites that will be included in the MOE acidification study plus blanks and duplicates. Forty-two samples are estimated to be analyzed for TN and TP. The dollar amount is \$40.80/sample for an estimated fee of \$1713.60 to run all analyses. The lab fee for the TN and TP analyses will show as a separate line item on invoices.

In all other respects, the Agreement is confirmed.

for Jim Standen Assistant Deputy Minister

SIGNED AND E representative:	DELIVERED on the 13th day of November 2013 on behalf of the Province by its duly authorized
SIGNATURE	
PRINT NAME	Jim Hofweber

SIGNED AND DELIVERED on the 13 day of November, 2013 by or on behalf of the Contractor (or by its authorized signatories if the Contractor is a corporation):

SIGNATURE

PRINT NAME Chris Perrin